
 

 

 
VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
Regular Council Meeting 

Agenda 
Glenwood Community Hall (90 Main Avenue) 

Thursday July 09, 2020 scheduled to start at 7:00pm 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

To access the supporting documents to this agenda, first download the agenda to your own 
computer/device, then look for them as attachments to the .pdf agenda document. 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Prayer 

 
3. Adoption of Agenda 

 
4. Adoption of Previous Minutes: 

a) 2020.06.11 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 
 

5. Delegations: 
a) Janet Edwards & Perry Hunsperger – Water Treatment Plant 

 
6. Items for Discussion and/or Action: 

a) Deputy Returning Officer appointment 
b) Resolution to place Communities in Bloom plaques in Community Hall 
c) Pioneer Parlour Sunday opening 
d) Discuss water/sewer main addition to 1st Ave SW between Center Street & 1st Street 

SW 
e) Cost of village property re-assessment this year? 
f) Revenue from RV Dump Station & Water outlet 
g) Village mow area around village sign at 4-way stop on Main & Center 
h) 2020 Road Project and drainage projects update 
i) Approval, or suggestions for changes to 2020 Principal Employment Policy 

 
7. Councillor Reports: 

 
8. Financial Reports: 

a) Accounts Payable Cheques for June 2020 (20190752-20190781) 
b) Budget vs Actual Review June 2020 

 
9. Correspondence: 

a. Attachment - Factsheet Q&A July 3 issue 
b. ORRSC Executive Minutes - April 9 2020 
c. water commission research agreement 
d. 2020.06.12 Fact Sheet 
e. AUMA Councillor Caucus 

 
10. Closed Meeting: 



Page 2 of 2 

a) Employee Matters – (Water Treatment Plant Operators & CAO) As per Section 24(b)(i) 
of the FOIP Act 

 
11. Adjournment: 





VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
June 11, 2020 Minutes 


 
The Regular Village of Glenwood Council meeting was held at the Glenwood 
Community Hall on June 11, 2020 scheduled at 7:00 PM. 
 
In attendance:  Mayor Albert Elias, Deputy Mayor David Rolfson and Councillor 
Barton Lybbert. Councillor Gerry Carter was absent. 
 
Officials:  CAO Marilee Campbell was in attendance. 


 
 


 


 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes June 11, 2020 Initials: Page 1 of 3 
 


 


Called to Order 
 
 
Prayer 
 
Agenda Adoption 
2020.06.068 
 
 
 
Minutes Adoption 
2020.06.069 
 
 
 
 
 
Delegations: 
Brenda MacMillan – 
Municipal Gifting 
 
Councillor Arrival 
 
Delegations Continued 
Myrna Young – 
Communities in Bloom 
 
Gallery Comments 


 
 


Items for Discussion: 
Approval of Mill Rate 
Budget 
2020.06.070 
 
 
Approval of Bylaw 
#241-2020 Tax Rate 
Bylaw 
2020.06.071 
 
 
 
2020.06.072 
 
 
 
 
2020.06.073 
 
 
 


Mayor Albert Elias called the June 11, 2020 Regular Council 
Meeting to order at 7:04 PM 
 
Councillor Lybbert 
  
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to adopt the agenda as amended with 
one addition: “h) question on rates, fees & charges bylaw”. 


Carried 
 
 


a. Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to adopt the minutes of the 
2020.04.09 Regular Council Meeting as presented. 


Carried 
b. Councillor Lybbert MOVED to adopt the minutes of the 


2020.05.14 Regular Council Meeting as presented. 
Carried 


 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
Councillor Carter arrived at 7:11 PM 
 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to approve the 2020 Mill Rate 
Budget as presented. 


Carried 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to approve First Reading of Bylaw #241-
2020 Tax Rate Bylaw, as presented. 


Carried 
 
Mayor Elias MOVED to approve Second Reading of Bylaw #241-
2020 Tax Rate Bylaw, as presented. 


Carried 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to consider Third & Final Reading 
of Bylaw #241-2020 Tax Rate Bylaw, as presented. 


Carried 
 







 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes June 11, 2020 Initials: Page 2 of 3 
 


2020.06.074 
 
 
 
Approval of Bylaw 
#256-2020 Municipal 
Borrowing Bylaw 
2020.06.075 
 
 
 
2020.06.076 
 
 
 
 
2020.06.077 
 
 
 
2020.06.078 
 
 
 
Deputy Returning 
Officer Appointment 
2020.06.079 
 
 
 
 
Rescind Special Ballot  
2020.06.080 
 
 
 
Cardston County Water 
Treatment Plant 
Operations Proposal 
2020.06.081 
 
 
 
 
Council & CAO Reports 
Councillor Carter 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert 
 
 
 
 
 
Mayor Elias 


Councillor Lybbert MOVED to approve Third & Final Reading of 
Bylaw #241-2020 Tax Rate Bylaw, as presented. 


Carried 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to approve First Reading of Bylaw 
#256-2020 Tax Rate Bylaw, as presented. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to approve Second Reading of Bylaw 
#256-2020 Tax Rate Bylaw, as presented. 


Carried 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to consider Third & Final Reading 
of Bylaw #256-2020 Tax Rate Bylaw, as presented. 


Carried 
 
Mayor Elias MOVED to approve Third & Final Reading of Bylaw 
#256-2020 Tax Rate Bylaw, as presented. 


Carried 
 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to approve appointment of Sherri 
Tatlow as the Deputy Returning Officer for the upcoming Municipal 
By-Election on July 21, 2020. 


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to rescind Resolution #2020.05.061 to 
remove the special ballot option of voting at the 2020 By-Election to 
be held on July 21, 2020. 


 Carried 
 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to instruct administration to research the 
costs of training a Water Treatment Operator for the purpose of 
creating a succession plan for the current Water Treatment Plant 
Operator. 


Carried 
 
 


• Attended Chinook Foundation meeting via Zoom 
• No Mayors & Reeves meeting this month 


 
• Attended a Chief Mountain Regional Solid Waste Authority 


(CMRSWA) meeting via Zoom – will continue working 
towards becoming a Commission. 


•  The Library can now open for business 
• Chinook Arch Regional Library System has resumed 


interlibrary loans and the next library conference will be 
online 


 
• Still unsure if there will be a Glenwood Days celebration this 


year 
• Cemetery clean up day for June 20 cancelled due to bad 


weather and thanks to the youth who painted the new fence 
posts 
 


• No meetings this month. 







 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes June 11, 2020 Initials: Page 3 of 3 
 


2020.06.082 
 
 
 
Financial Reports 
 
 
 
 
2020.06.083 
 
 
 
Correspondence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2020.06.084 
 
 
 
Closed Meeting 
2020.06.085 
 
 
 
2020.06.086 
 
 
 
 
 
2020.06.087 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
2020.06.088 


Councillor Lybbert MOVED to accept the councillor reports as 
information. 


Carried 
 
• Council reviewed the Accounts Payable Cheques for May 


2020 (20190716-20190751) 
• Council reviewed the 2020 Budget VS Actual Operating & 


Capital Report to date 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to accept the financial reports as 
information. 


Carried 
 


a) CMRSWA 2019 Financial Statements 
b) 2020 Detailed Assessment Audit Notification Letter 
c) Bill 13 EMA Amendments FAQ Final 
d) CMRSWA Minutes 05-20 
e) FAQ sheet May 29 Issue 
f) Memo to Municipalities-Committee Meetings 05.26.20 
g) Commission meeting invite 
h) Village of Glenwood 2020 GTF award 


 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to accept the correspondence as 
information. 


Carried 
 
 
Mayor Elias MOVED to close the meeting to the public at 8:30 PM to 
discuss Employee Matters per Section 24(b)(i) of the FOIP Act. 


Carried 
 
Mayor Elias MOVED to open the meeting to the public at 9:13 PM. 


Carried 
 
The Council Meeting resumed at 9:20 PM allowing for the public to 
rejoin the meeting. 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to accept the resignation of Marilee 
Campbell as CAO for the Village of Glenwood; to take effect as soon 
as a new CAO can be hired and is trained. 


Carried 
 


Mayor Elias MOVED to adjourn the meeting at 9:32 PM. 
Carried 


 
 
 


_____________________________________________ 
Meeting Chair 


 
 
 


_____________________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 


  
 








Village of Glenwood Principal Employment Policy 
 


 


Mayor:  
          
CAO:   


 Page 1 of 6 


 


 
 


PRINCIPAL 
EMPLOYMENT POLICY 


 
between 


 


Employees 
 


and 
 


Village of Glenwood 
 


Effective July 10, 2020 
 
 


 
 
 


 
  







Village of Glenwood Principal Employment Policy 
 


 


Mayor:  
          
CAO:   


 Page 2 of 6 


 


1. PURPOSE 


 
This Document is an important part of the Village’s strategic human resource management 
process and is design to address the relationship between the Village and its Employees.  The 
purpose of this policy is: 
 


1.1 To facilitate a harmonious and cooperative relationship between the Council and 
Management. 


1.2 To provide an amicable method of settling any differences that may arise between 
the Village and its Employees. 


1.3 To promote the mutual interest of both the Village and its Employees. 
1.4 To promote, to the fullest extent possible, the safety and welfare of Employees, the 


economy, operations and protection of the property and welfare of the public and 
the Village. 


 
 
2. HOURS OF WORK 


 
The regular hours of work for an Employee is forty (40) hours per week, Monday through Friday 
(unless otherwise agreed upon). Weekend work may be required.  Daily hours as set by the 
Village may be scheduled between 7 AM and 11 PM.  Employees are permitted a one (1) one-
hour unpaid lunch break near the midpoint of each shift.  An Employee’s work schedule is 
flexible and may be amended upon approval of the Chief Administrative Officer. 
 
When an Employee’s shift and/or regular hours are to be changed, the Employee shall be given 
a minimum of two (2) full working days’ notice prior to such change, except in situations where 
weather is a determinant notification is not required. 
 
 
3. PAY 


 
The Village shall pay Employee wages on a monthly basis at the end of each month. 
 
 
4. OVERTIME 


 
Overtime is owed for all hours worked over eight (8) hours a day or forty-four (44) hours a 
week, whichever is greater. You must be paid at least 1.5 times your regular hourly rate for 
overtime worked.  If you have a banked overtime agreement, you must be given time off at a 
rate of 1.5 hours for each overtime hour worked, paid at your regular wage rate. 
 
 
 







Village of Glenwood Principal Employment Policy 
 


 


Mayor:  
          
CAO:   


 Page 3 of 6 


 


5. MINIMUM CALL-OUT PAY 


 
If you are called into work for a meeting or to work, but then sent home, you will be paid 
whichever works out to be more: 


• Your hourly wage multiplied by the time actually worked (overtime rates apply) 
OR 


• 3 hours at a rate of at least minimum wage 
 
 
6. GENERAL HOLIDAY PAY 


 
You are entitled to general (statutory) holiday pay unless you miss your scheduled shifts right 
before or after the general holiday without your employer’s consent, or didn’t work the general 
holiday when required to. If you work on a general holiday, you are entitled to either: 


• At least your average daily wage plus at least 1.5 times your wage rate for hours 
worked 


OR 


• Your regular wage for hours worked and applicable overtime plus a day (on a 
normal work day) off with pay that’s at least your average daily wage. 


 
If you don’t work on a general holiday, you are entitled to at least your average daily wage. 
 
 
7. BANKED OVERTIME 


 
Any employee is entitled to overtime pay as described above, but may accumulate up to 80 
hours of banked time per year. 
 
All overtime must be authorized by the Employer.  Monthly overtime cannot exceed 8 hours 
without mutual agreement between Employer and Employee. 
 
 
8. GENERAL HOLIDAYS 


 
The following shall be considered general holidays: 
 


• New Year’s Day 


• Family Day (3rd Monday in February) 


• Good Friday 


• Easter Monday 


• Victoria Day 


• Canada Day 


• Labour Day 


• (Civic Holiday) 1st Monday in August 


• Thanksgiving Day 


• Remembrance Day 


• Christmas Day 


• Boxing Day 
 







Village of Glenwood Principal Employment Policy 
 


 


Mayor:  
          
CAO:   


 Page 4 of 6 


 


9. ANNUAL VACATIONS 


 
Employees will choose either option A or option B, at the commencement of their 
employment, for their chosen method of compensation for vacations.  A maximum of one (1) 
week’s banked overtime hours can be carried over to the next year. 
 


9.1 The following is the annual vacation schedule (Option A): 
(a) Employees receive within their first year of service a one (1) week vacation 


with pay each year.  
(b) Employees with three (3) years continuous service or more shall be given 


three (3) weeks’ vacation with pay each year. 
(c) Employees with eight (8) years continuous service or more shall be given four 


(4) weeks’ vacation with pay each year. 
(d) Employees with sixteen (16) years continuous service or more shall be given 


five (5) weeks’ vacation with pay each year. 
9.2 The following is the annual vacation schedule (Option B): 


(a) Employees receive 4% Vacation pay collected on each monthly pay period 
during the first five (5) years on the job. 


(b) Employees receive 6% Vacation pay collected on each monthly pay period 
after the first five (5) years on the job. 


 
All vacation time will be calculated as the beginning of the work year (January 1), not an 
Employee’s anniversary date. All vacation time must be used within the same calendar year in 
which it is granted, or it be forfeited. Unused vacation time will not be paid out at the end of 
the calendar year. 
 
 
10. SICKNESS 


 
10.1 Permanent Employees shall receive full wages for a period of time not exceeding 


the accumulated sick leave credit.  The maximum allowable accumulated sick leave 
is 30 days. 


10.2 Sick leave credit may be accumulated to a maximum of one and one-half (1½) days 
per month. 


10.3 Unused sick leave for any year shall be carried over and accumulated; any time off 
for sickness shall be deducted from the accumulated days. 


10.4 Employees may be required to produce a certificate from a medical practitioner for 
any illness in excess of four (4) days, certifying that the Employee was unable to 
carry out his/her duties due to illness. 


10.5 If an Employee retires with the Village, they are not entitled to be paid out for any 
accumulated sick days. 
 
 







Village of Glenwood Principal Employment Policy 
 


 


Mayor:  
          
CAO:   


 Page 5 of 6 


 


11. BENEFITS 


 
The Village of Glenwood benefit plan, as outlined below, is only available to Employees that are 
permanent in nature and work at least 32 hours per individual work week, and will be in force 
after the 3 month probation period is completed.  
 


11.1 Long-Term Disability shall be provided by the Employer.  This benefit will provide a 
minimum of two-thirds (⅔) salary after thirteen (13) weeks until the age of sixty-five 
(65) years for all Employees who qualify under the guidelines of the terms of 
reference as set down by the Insurer.  The Village agrees to pay one hundred 
percent (100%) of the Long-Term Disability premiums. 


11.2 Short-Term Disability shall be provided by the Employer.  This benefit will provide a 
minimum of two-thirds (⅔) salary after 1 day of hospitalization or 8 straight days 
where the Employee is unable to work due to sickness until the age of sixty-five (65) 
years for all Employees who qualify under the guidelines of the terms of reference 
as set down by the Insurer.  The Village agrees to pay one hundred percent (100%) 
of the Short-Term Disability premiums. 


11.3 Employees will be covered by AUMA Basic Group Life Insurance Plan, with the 
Employer paying one hundred percent (100%) of the cost. 


11.4 Employees will be covered by AUMA Accidental Death & Dismemberment Insurance 
Plan, with the Employer paying one hundred percent (100%) of the cost. 


11.5 Employees will be covered by the Optional Critical Illness Insurance Plan 
administered by AUMA with the Employer paying one hundred (100%) of the cost. 


11.6 The Employer agrees to pay one hundred percent (100%) of the premium costs 
associated with the Alberta Health Care Insurance Plan and AUMA Extended Health 
Care, Vision Care and Dental Care Plans. 


11.7 The Employer agrees to pay into a Registered Retirement Savings Plan (RRSP) for 
the Employee according to the following parameters: 
(a) Employer will match the Employees yearly contribution into an RRSP set up by 


the Village, to a total equivalent of up to 3% of the Employees annual salary.  
Contributions into the RRSP will be made through equal monthly payments as 
long as employment continues. 


(b) Contributions by the Employer into the RRSP immediately become vested to 
the Employee upon receipt. 


(c) The Employee authorizes the Employer to deduct the Employees portion of 
the matching contribution to the RRSP from their monthly pay and place it in 
the RRSP. 


(d) As an initial additional contribution, Employer will match the Employees 
contribution into an RRSP to a total accumulative amount equivalent to $250 
per year of employment with the Village.  The Employee must make the 
contribution delineated in this subsection (8.7.d) by June 1st, 2018. 


 
 







Village of Glenwood Principal Employment Policy 
 


 


Mayor:  
          
CAO:   


 Page 6 of 6 


 


12. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 


 
Leave of absence in order to carry out responsibilities incurred by the death of a relative shall 
be permitted. Employees can take up to three (3) consecutive working days.  Relative shall be 
defined as:  


Mother, Father, Brother, Sister, Wife, Husband, Common-Law Spouse, Child/Grandchild 
or Foster Child, Guardian, Mother-in-Law, Father-in-Law, Sister-in-Law, Brother-in-Law, 
Grandparent(s) of the Employee or Grandparent(s) of the Employee's spouse. 


 
Any leave in excess of three (3) working days must be approved by the CAO in advance.  
 
13. COMPASSIONATE CARE LEAVE 


 
Refer to the current Employment Standards Code of Alberta for this section. 
 
14. MATERNITY/PARENTAL LEAVE 


 
Refer to the current Employment Standards Code of Alberta for this section. 
 
15. WORKPLACE HEALTH & SAFETY 


 
The Village is committed to maintain a safe and healthy work environment.  Management is 
responsible to create this environment.  Management is responsible to determine their 
department’s health & safety needs.  These needs should be addressed within Management’s 
annual department budget recommendations.  The Village will allocate budget funds for health 
& safety within the confines of their financial ability. 
 
Full Time Permanent Employees shall receive up to $250.00 annually for personal safety items.  
The Village will reimburse Employees upon submission of receipts for personal safety items. 
 








11:36:36AM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2020-Jul-7Cheque Listing For Council


Page 1 of 2


Cheque #


Cheque


Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description


Invoice 


Amount


Cheque 


Amount


 20190752 2020-06-04 ALBERTA ONE CALL CORPORATION PAYMENT  37.80


IN159462 LAND LOCATES  37.80 


 20190753 2020-06-04 BENCHMARK ASSESSMENT CONSULTANTS INC PAYMENT  2,076.38


1471 2020 JUN - AUG ASSESSMENT FEE  2,076.38 


 20190754 2020-06-04 CAMPBELL, MARILEE PAYMENT  1,558.85


2020- JUN -04 TREES, POSTAGE,  1,558.85 


 20190755 2020-06-04 CANADA REVENUE AGENCY PAYMENT  4,191.85


2020*05*LIB 2020*05* LIB PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS  93.20 


2020*MAY 2020*MAY PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS  4,098.65 


 20190756 2020-06-04 GLENWOOD MUNICIPAL LIBRARY PAYMENT  15,000.00


2020 2020 LIBRARY SUPPORT  15,000.00 


 20190757 2020-06-04 GREGG DISTRIBUTORS  LP PAYMENT  7.89


055 - 177966 SCREWS OFFICE, VALVE IRR  7.89 


 20190758 2020-06-04 JEDWIN MEDIA INC (leth Web Design) PAYMENT  1,312.50


21378 2020 WEB MANAGEMENT  1,312.50 


 20190759 2020-06-04 KOST FIRE EQUIPMENT. LTD. PAYMENT  453.62


410073618 2020 ANNUAL INSPECTION  453.62 


 20190760 2020-06-11 LYBBERT, MYRON REPL-20190679 Replacement Cheque  91.30  91.30


REPL-20190679 Replacement Cheque


 20190761 2020-06-11 AGED CHEESE CLUB PAYMENT  500.00


2020 -S Club SENIOR CLUB  500.00 


 20190762 2020-06-11 ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES CORPORATION PAYMENT  3,825.31


20-1034152 UTILITIES  3,825.31 


 20190763 2020-06-11 BECK'S EXCAVATING & TRUCKING LTD PAYMENT  735.00


2817 IRRIGATION LEAK  735.00 


 20190764 2020-06-11 CITY OF LETHBRIDGE - CITY HALL PAYMENT  296.25


57646 - 52144 2020 Q2 DISPATCHING SERVICE  296.25 


 20190765 2020-06-11 FARM SAFETY CENTRE PAYMENT  300.00


2020-donation 2020 - DONATIONS  300.00 


 20190766 2020-06-11 LETHBRIDGE TRUCK TERMINALS PAYMENT  31.82


183314 EMPTY BARREL RETURN  31.82 


 20190767 2020-06-11 ULINE CANADA CORP. PAYMENT  410.69


6763633 SHRINK WRAP RECYCLING OLD COMP. ETC. 410.69 


 20190768 2020-06-11 Seear  (LaSeearious), Heather PAYMENT  50.00


May 30 Hall ref REFUND HALL RENTAL MAY 30/20  50.00 


 20190769 2020-06-17 EDWARDS, DARRELL PAYMENT  16.75


2020-06---17 CEMETERY HELPERS TREATS  16.75 


 20190770 2020-06-17 MUNICIPAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC. PAYMENT  304.51


20200701 JULY SUPPORT  304.51 


 20190771 2020-06-17 PETTY CASH REPLENISH PAYMENT  30.00


2020- EMERG EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT BACK PACKS 30.00 


 20190772 2020-06-30 HUNSPERGER, PERRY


 20190773 2020-06-30 EDWARDS, JANET


 20190774 2020-06-30 KINAHAN, CARRIE


 20190775 2020-06-30 GOETZ , CALVIN


 20190776 2020-06-30 CARTER, GERALD


 20190777 2020-06-30 ELIAS, JONAS


 20190778 2020-06-30 LYBBERT, BART







11:36:36AM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2020-Jul-7Cheque Listing For Council


Page 2 of 2


Cheque #


Cheque


Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description


Invoice 


Amount


Cheque 


Amount


 20190779 2020-06-30 ROLFSON, DAVID


 20190780 2020-06-30 CAMPBELL, ELIZA M


 20190781 2020-06-30 CLARK, DEBRA F


*** End of Report ***


Total  45,947.43








 4:44:17PM


2020-Jul-7


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 1 of 10


Tax Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-102 Taxes - Chinook Foundation (5,520.07) (5,847.32) (6,000.00) (5,829.06)  2.84 (170.94)


1-00-00-00-00-103 Taxes - Non-Residential (49,488.39) (52,143.99) (53,000.00) (49,550.53)  6.50 (3,449.47)


1-00-00-00-00-105 Taxes - Linear (12,961.37) (14,004.13) (13,900.00) (16,244.27) (16.86)  2,344.27 


1-00-00-00-00-108 Taxes - Residential (217,615.50) (227,298.55) (233,500.00) (228,319.07)  2.21 (5,180.93)


1-00-00-00-00-110 Taxes - M&E (21,706.20) (22,805.99) (23,300.00) (22,800.00)  2.14 (500.00)


1-00-00-00-00-130 Taxes - Policing  0.00  0.00 (5,585.00)  0.00  100.00 (5,585.00)


*        TOTAL Tax Revenue (307,291.53) (322,099.98) (335,285.00) (322,742.93) 3.74 (12,542.07)


General Government Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-590 Other Revenue from Own Sources (350.00) (1,221.00) (300.00)  0.00  100.00 (300.00)


1-12-00-00-00-410 Photocopy,Fax, etc Revenue (266.55) (172.05) (180.00) (206.85) (14.91)  26.85 


1-12-00-00-00-433 Assessment Appeal Deposit (50.00) (50.00) (100.00)  0.00  100.00 (100.00)


1-12-00-00-00-525 License - Business (160.00) (280.00) (240.00) (190.00)  20.83 (50.00)


1-12-00-00-00-561 Xplornet (2,788.80) (2,970.46) (2,000.00) (1,495.60)  25.22 (504.40)


1-00-00-00-00-510 Taxes - Penalties & Costs (4,370.61) (1,893.08) (4,000.00) (2,102.82)  47.42 (1,897.18)


1-00-00-00-00-541 Franchise & Concession ATCO Revenue (3,322.30) (18,354.44) (9,000.00) (11,568.74) (28.54)  2,568.74 


1-00-00-00-00-550 Return on Investments (3,153.87) (5,804.40) (3,500.00) (1,459.91)  58.28 (2,040.09)


*        TOTAL General Gov't Revenue (14,462.13) (30,745.43) (19,320.00) (17,023.92) 11.88 (2,296.08)


Operating Grant Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-748 Grant Misc (9,345.03) (1,500.00) (2,500.00)  679.00  127.16 (3,179.00)


1-00-00-00-00-751 GRANTS - ACP INTERMUNICIPAL (17,354.25) (4,414.89) (1,000.00)  0.00  100.00 (1,000.00)


1-00-00-00-00-843 Grant - MSI Operational (34,832.00) (34,147.00) (34,000.00) (31,607.00)  7.03 (2,393.00)


*        TOTAL Operating Grant Revenue (61,531.28) (40,061.89) (37,500.00) (30,928.00) 17.53 (6,572.00)







 4:44:18PM


2020-Jul-7


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 2 of 10


Protective Services Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-990 Other Rev - NSF,  Fines, Lease (665.00) (35.00) (200.00) (22.00)  89.00 (178.00)


*        TOTAL Protective Services Rev (665.00) (35.00) (200.00) (22.00) 89.00 (178.00)


Transportation Service Revenue


1-30-00-00-00-410 Equipment Pool Revenue (400.00) (110.00) (200.00) (154.29)  22.85 (45.71)


1-32-00-00-00-591 Snow Removal Roads & Streets (80.00) (400.00) (100.00) (80.00)  20.00 (20.00)


*        TOTAL Trans Service Revenue (480.00) (510.00) (300.00) (234.29) 21.90 (65.71)


Water Revenue


1-41-00-00-00-120 Water Connection Install  0.00 (5,000.00) (1,000.00) (1,000.00)  0.00  0.00 


1-41-00-00-00-121 Water On/Off Fee (240.00) (270.00) (100.00) (120.00) (20.00)  20.00 


1-41-00-00-00-410 Sales - Water (105,061.11) (123,579.31) (110,200.00) (54,918.73)  50.16 (55,281.27)


1-41-00-00-00-411 Water - Bulk Sales (3,594.04) (3,578.42) (3,000.00) (1,564.33)  47.85 (1,435.67)


1-41-00-00-00-510 Water - Penalties & Costs (411.91) (222.93) (500.00) (127.25)  74.55 (372.75)


*        TOTAL Water Revenue (109,307.06) (132,650.66) (114,800.00) (57,730.31) 49.71 (57,069.69)


Irrigation Revenue


1-40-00-00-00-410 Sales - Irrigation (9,522.50) (11,292.32) (10,200.00) (6,166.24)  39.54 (4,033.76)


*        TOTAL Irrigation Revenue (9,522.50) (11,292.32) (10,200.00) (6,166.24) 39.55 (4,033.76)


Sewer Revenue


1-42-00-00-00-120 Sewer Connection Install  0.00 (2,000.00) (1,000.00) (1,000.00)  0.00  0.00 


1-42-00-00-00-410 Sales - Sewer (26,831.66) (22,578.00) (24,000.00) (11,100.00)  53.75 (12,900.00)


1-42-00-00-00-411 Sales - Sewer RV Dumping Station (3,092.75) (3,126.35) (3,000.00) (597.90)  80.07 (2,402.10)


1-42-00-00-00-412 Sewer RV Campground Agreements (4,000.00) (4,000.00) (4,000.00) (75.00)  98.12 (3,925.00)


*        TOTAL Sewer Revenue (33,924.41) (31,704.35) (32,000.00) (12,772.90) 60.08 (19,227.10)







 4:44:18PM


2020-Jul-7


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 3 of 10


Waste Management  Revenue


1-43-00-00-00-410 Sales - Solid Waste (12,015.00) (12,992.00) (12,000.00) (13,078.67) (8.98)  1,078.67 


*        TOTAL Waste Mgmt Rev (12,015.00) (12,992.00) (12,000.00) (13,078.67) (8.99) 1,078.67


Cemetery Revenue


1-56-00-00-00-410 Cemetery - Plots & Fees (1,260.00) (1,130.00) (600.00) (225.00)  62.50 (375.00)


1-56-00-00-00-420 Cemetery - Donations (2,040.00) (1,250.00) (500.00) (2,497.74) (399.54)  1,997.74 


1-56-00-00-00-430 Cemetery County Contribution  0.00  0.00 (1,375.00)  0.00  100.00 (1,375.00)


*        TOTAL Cemetery Revenue (3,300.00) (2,380.00) (2,475.00) (2,722.74) (10.01) 247.74


Recreation & Culture Revenue


1-74-02-00-00-560 Rentals Community Hall (1,175.00) (1,988.75) (1,000.00) (300.00)  70.00 (700.00)


1-72-00-00-00-410 Sales & Services - Recreation (100.00) (399.50) (100.00)  0.00  100.00 (100.00)


1-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Revenue (42,867.91) (45,806.31) (47,600.00) (706.55)  98.51 (46,893.45)


1-74-04-00-00-410 Pioneer Days funds-fireworks donations (200.00) (2,950.00) (3,000.00) (181.00)  93.96 (2,819.00)


1-74-05-00-00-474 Post Office Rental Revenue  0.00 (1,400.00) (2,400.00) (1,200.00)  50.00 (1,200.00)


*        TOTAL Rec & Culture Rev (44,342.91) (52,544.56) (54,100.00) (2,387.55) 95.59 (51,712.45)


Planning & Development Revenue


1-12-00-00-00-490 Permit - Dev/Compliance (1,350.00)  415.00 (200.00) (5,330.00) (2,565.00)  5,130.00 


1-95-00-00-00-763 Transfers From Reserves - Operating  0.00  0.00 (3,000.00)  0.00  100.00 (3,000.00)


*        TOTAL Planning & Development R (1,350.00) 415.00 (3,200.00) (5,330.00) (66.56) 2,130.00


**       TOTAL Revenue (598,191.82) (636,601.19) (621,380.00) (471,139.55) 24.18 (150,240.45)







 4:44:18PM


2020-Jul-7


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 4 of 10


Council Expenses


2-11-00-00-00-153 Council Honorariums  10,050.00  10,700.00  11,000.00  3,500.00  68.18  7,500.00 


2-11-00-00-00-213 Council Travel  6,897.07  3,826.16  6,000.00  1,253.08  79.11  4,746.92 


2-11-00-00-00-520 Council Misc  3,772.50  2,322.89  3,500.00  397.96  88.62  3,102.04 


*        TOTAL Council Expenses 20,719.57 16,849.05 20,500.00 5,151.04 74.87 15,348.96


Administration Expenses


2-12-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Admin  117,586.80  84,671.54  89,100.00  44,561.94  49.98  44,538.06 


2-12-00-00-00-113 Travel & Training - CAO  3,838.92  2,895.42  4,000.00  1,362.47  65.93  2,637.53 


2-12-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Admin  4,596.92  6,119.31  6,200.00  3,171.09  48.85  3,028.91 


2-12-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Admin  14,869.79  15,592.87  13,200.00  8,443.32  36.03  4,756.68 


2-12-00-00-00-142 Workers Compensation Admin  2,063.23  2,551.22  2,500.00  2,157.04  13.71  342.96 


2-12-00-00-00-150 Election & Census  409.03  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-12-00-00-00-210 Travel & Training - ADMIN  1,823.11  1,366.96  5,000.00  0.00  100.00  5,000.00 


2-12-00-00-00-215 Telephone Land Line Admin  1,003.01  1,044.19  1,500.00  354.58  76.36  1,145.42 


2-12-00-00-00-216 Fax Land Line Admin  779.87  891.36  1,000.00  302.10  69.79  697.90 


2-12-00-00-00-220 Advert, Printing, Memberships Admin  5,927.09  5,863.37  6,600.00  3,478.52  47.29  3,121.48 


2-12-00-00-00-230 Professional & Consulting Admin  33,559.89  34,959.05  33,300.00  8,375.07  74.84  24,924.93 


2-12-00-00-00-235 Postage & Freight Admin  2,490.83  2,056.94  2,500.00  445.77  82.16  2,054.23 


2-12-00-00-00-270 Misc Expense Admin  200.59  1,510.48  600.00  546.11  8.98  53.89 


2-12-00-00-00-274 Insurance Admin  17,333.80  13,446.10  13,800.00  18,089.30 (31.08) (4,289.30)


2-12-00-00-00-280 Reg Fees Land Titles  236.00  90.00  200.00  20.00  90.00  180.00 


2-12-00-00-00-290 Office Bldg Maintenance Admin  729.03  505.83  800.00  264.53  66.93  535.47 


2-12-00-00-00-300 Assessor Fees Admin  7,407.51  7,927.50  8,200.00  3,955.00  51.76  4,245.00 


2-12-00-00-00-510 Office Expense Admin  2,077.73  4,758.90  2,750.00  1,198.85  56.40  1,551.15 


2-12-00-00-00-520 Web Hosting Admin  1,250.00  1,250.00  1,300.00  1,250.00  3.84  50.00 


2-12-00-00-00-540 Administration Utilities Power  2,530.90  2,685.91  2,750.00  1,259.78  54.18  1,490.22 


2-12-00-00-00-541 Administration Utilities Gas  1,280.00  1,413.95  1,500.00  904.68  39.68  595.32 


2-12-00-00-00-810 Bank Charges Admin  2,677.87  2,729.48  2,750.00  550.70  79.97  2,199.30 


2-12-00-00-00-999 Adm - Amortization  219,863.43  178,644.74  224,400.00  0.00  100.00  224,400.00 


*        TOTAL Administration Expenses 444,535.35 372,975.12 423,950.00 100,690.85 76.25 323,259.15







 4:44:18PM


2020-Jul-7


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 5 of 10


Protective Services Expenses


2-23-00-00-00-110 Fire & Emergency Management wages  497.74  250.00  1,000.00  150.00  85.00  850.00 


2-23-00-00-00-130 Employer source deduction Fire  0.87  0.00  50.00  0.00  100.00  50.00 


2-23-00-00-00-270 Fire Misc  2,332.54  361.63  2,000.00  432.02  78.39  1,567.98 


2-23-00-00-00-510 Fire Goods & Supplies  95.41  0.00  50.00  0.00  100.00  50.00 


2-23-00-00-00-540 Fire Utilities Power  1,644.37  2,092.38  1,950.00  1,053.17  45.99  896.83 


2-23-00-00-00-541 Fire Utilities Gas  1,906.33  2,404.72  1,900.00  1,677.00  11.73  223.00 


2-23-00-00-00-750 Fire Requisition  6,506.64  6,104.64  11,300.00  6,125.70  45.79  5,174.30 


2-23-00-00-00-760 Fire Dispatch Services  836.61  1,150.24  1,200.00  592.50  50.62  607.50 


2-23-00-00-00-770 Victim Services  600.00  600.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


*        TOTAL Protective Services Exp 14,420.51 12,963.61 19,950.00 10,030.39 49.72 9,919.61


Shop Expenses


2-30-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Equip Pool  3,120.67  3,101.60  2,700.00  1,551.30  42.54  1,148.70 


2-30-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Equip Pool  187.30  197.70  200.00  111.63  44.18  88.37 


2-30-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Equip Pool  156.02  1,101.66  200.00  533.70 (166.85) (333.70)


2-31-00-00-00-110 Village Maintenance Wages  15,716.39  15,508.12  13,700.00  7,756.36  43.38  5,943.64 


2-31-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions V-Main  936.58  988.33  900.00  558.19  37.97  341.81 


2-31-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefits Vlg Maint  780.46  970.94  1,000.00  354.65  64.53  645.35 


2-31-00-00-00-250 Vlg Maint Contracted Services  2,075.00  228.64  2,000.00  0.00  100.00  2,000.00 


2-31-00-00-00-510 Vlg Maint Tools, Hardware, Op  1,230.39  993.12  2,000.00  434.45  78.27  1,565.55 


2-31-00-00-00-524 Vlg Maint Equip Supplies  2,040.54  2,298.06  2,000.00  120.33  93.98  1,879.67 


2-31-00-00-00-526 Vlg Maint Equip Supply Tractor  987.73  920.01  800.00  664.62  16.92  135.38 


2-31-00-00-00-527 Vlg Maint Fuel  4,399.34  2,547.96  3,100.00  0.00  100.00  3,100.00 


2-31-00-00-00-550 Safety Gear  341.45  151.32  500.00  333.57  33.28  166.43 


2-32-00-00-00-215 Telephone Shop  778.44  589.30  900.00  302.10  66.43  597.90 


2-32-00-00-00-217 Cell Phone Foreman  907.97  1,292.00  900.00  392.81  56.35  507.19 


*        TOTAL Shop Expenses 33,658.28 30,888.76 30,900.00 13,113.71 57.56 17,786.29







 4:44:18PM


2020-Jul-7


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 6 of 10


Road & Street Expenses


2-32-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Streets & Roads  16,531.47  17,839.28  17,200.00  9,050.12  47.38  8,149.88 


2-32-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deduct Streets & Roads  1,017.39  1,041.20  1,100.00  632.86  42.46  467.14 


2-32-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deduct Streets & Roads  820.13  970.94  1,200.00  354.65  70.44  845.35 


2-32-00-00-00-250 Streets & Roads Contracted Services  7,535.84  1,177.00  2,000.00  1,307.00  34.65  693.00 


2-32-00-00-00-260 Streets & Roads Goods & Servcies  0.00  482.62  1,000.00  0.00  100.00  1,000.00 


2-32-00-00-00-530 Streets & Roads Maint Materials  844.99  3,001.28  1,000.00  0.00  100.00  1,000.00 


2-32-00-00-00-540 Streetlights  10,559.86  12,329.42  12,000.00  6,254.99  47.87  5,745.01 


*        TOTAL Road & Street Expenses 37,309.68 36,841.74 35,500.00 17,599.62 50.42 17,900.38


Irrigation Expenses


2-40-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Irrigation  7,729.82  8,534.35  6,900.00  4,229.88  38.69  2,670.12 


2-40-00-00-00-250 Irrg System Contracted Services  0.00  0.00  500.00  700.00 (40.00) (200.00)


2-40-00-00-00-252 Irrg System Maint  329.97  973.75  750.00  35.78  95.22  714.22 


2-40-00-00-00-540 Irrg System Utilities Power  3,248.23  2,598.47  3,600.00  511.02  85.80  3,088.98 


*        TOTAL Irrigation Expenses 11,308.02 12,106.57 11,750.00 5,476.68 53.39 6,273.32


Water Expenses


2-41-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Water  22,803.75  21,831.84  29,500.00  10,710.33  63.69  18,789.67 


2-41-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Water  1,730.48  1,763.93  2,600.00  979.58  62.32  1,620.42 


2-41-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Water  1,092.62  1,846.51  2,300.00  677.99  70.52  1,622.01 


2-41-00-00-00-210 Water - Seminars & Travel  1,823.34  3,553.10  3,000.00  1,326.01  55.79  1,673.99 


2-41-00-00-00-215 Telephone Water Plant  1,078.35  1,191.36  1,100.00  302.10  72.53  797.90 


2-41-00-00-00-250 Water Supply Contracted Services  7,983.88  12,015.10  11,000.00  10,217.24  7.11  782.76 


2-41-00-00-00-252 Water Supply Maint  1,968.90  2,451.60  7,600.00  3,577.43  52.92  4,022.57 


2-41-00-00-00-270 Water Supply Misc  22,947.95  31.14  1,500.00  0.00  100.00  1,500.00 


2-41-00-00-00-510 Water Supply Goods & Service  6,196.25  4,464.17  6,500.00  3,985.62  38.68  2,514.38 


2-41-00-00-00-540 Water Supply Utilities Power  10,156.53  12,076.98  10,700.00  5,838.06  45.43  4,861.94 


2-41-00-00-00-541 Water Supply Utilities Gas  3,428.59  3,545.23  3,800.00  2,214.02  41.73  1,585.98 


2-41-00-00-00-905 Water Billing Discount  3,489.50  3,655.62  3,500.00  56.00  98.40  3,444.00 


*        TOTAL Water Expenses 84,700.14 68,426.58 83,100.00 39,884.38 52.00 43,215.62







 4:44:18PM


2020-Jul-7


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 7 of 10


Sewer Expenses


2-42-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Sewer  3,020.67  3,101.60  2,700.00  1,551.30  42.54  1,148.70 


2-42-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Sewer  187.30  197.70  200.00  111.63  44.18  88.37 


2-42-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Sewer  156.02  276.80  200.00  113.02  43.49  86.98 


2-42-00-00-00-250 Sewer Contracted Services  19,819.86  2,481.70  5,250.00  0.00  100.00  5,250.00 


2-42-00-00-00-510 Sewer Goods & Services  0.00  0.00  250.00  0.00  100.00  250.00 


2-42-00-00-00-905 Sewer Billing Discount  0.00  0.00  250.00  0.00  100.00  250.00 


*        TOTAL Sewer Expenses 23,183.85 6,057.80 8,850.00 1,775.95 79.93 7,074.05


Waste Management Expenses


2-43-00-00-00-250 Solid Waste Contracted Services  0.00  0.00  250.00  3,395.50 (1,258.20) (3,145.50)


2-43-00-00-00-510 Solid Waste Goods & Services  50.48  0.00  250.00  0.00  100.00  250.00 


2-43-00-00-00-750 Solid Waste Requisition - CMRSWA  6,747.37  7,792.56  7,100.00  4,093.78  42.34  3,006.22 


2-43-00-00-00-752 Requisition - County Transfer Station  0.00  3,126.80  3,300.00  4,050.48 (22.74) (750.48)


*        TOTAL Waste Mgmt Expenses 6,797.85 10,919.36 10,900.00 11,539.76 (5.87) (639.76)


Cemetery Expenses


2-56-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Cemetery  1,688.45  3,346.52  2,100.00  2,678.66 (27.55) (578.66)


2-56-00-00-00-510 Cemetery Goods & Services  142.83  200.00  3,250.00  1,204.40  62.94  2,045.60 


2-56-00-00-00-540 Cemetery Utilities Power  947.99  1,006.25  1,100.00  504.78  54.11  595.22 


2-56-00-00-00-620 Cemetery Transfer to Reserves  0.00  0.00  500.00  130.65  73.87  369.35 


*        TOTAL Cemetery Expenses 2,779.27 4,552.77 6,950.00 4,518.49 34.99 2,431.51


Planning & Development Expense


2-76-00-00-00-250 Development Contracted Services  0.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


2-76-00-00-00-251 Planning - GIS  1,659.00  1,681.12  1,730.00  5,202.10 (200.69) (3,472.10)


2-76-00-00-00-252 ORRSC Requisition  3,288.28  3,863.00  5,200.00  0.00  100.00  5,200.00 


*        TOTAL Planning & Dev Expenses 4,947.28 5,544.12 7,430.00 5,202.10 29.99 2,227.90







 4:44:18PM


2020-Jul-7


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 8 of 10


Parks & Recreation Expenses


2-62-00-00-00-201 Community Service Misc  0.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


2-74-04-00-00-510 Pioneer Days Fireworks  3,000.00  3,150.00  3,000.00  0.00  100.00  3,000.00 


2-72-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Parks & Rec  4,396.15  5,978.61  2,000.00  4,092.85 (104.64) (2,092.85)


2-72-00-00-00-725 Recreation Expenses (Vlg USE ONLY)  1,355.31  1,142.36  6,150.00  0.00  100.00  6,150.00 


2-72-00-00-00-540 Recreation Utilities Power  951.94  1,064.68  1,000.00  555.34  44.46  444.66 


2-72-00-00-00-541 Recreation Utilities Gas  730.00  855.88  800.00  531.19  33.60  268.81 


*        TOTAL Parks & Rec Expenses 10,433.40 12,191.53 13,450.00 5,179.38 61.49 8,270.62


Library Expenses


2-74-01-00-00-250 Library Contracted Services  968.38  886.57  1,000.00  1,155.90 (15.59) (155.90)


2-74-01-00-00-510 Library Goods and Services  0.00  10.45  500.00  75.13  84.97  424.87 


2-74-01-00-00-750 Library Society Operating Support  18,000.00  15,000.00  15,300.00  15,000.00  1.96  300.00 


2-74-01-00-00-771 Requisition Chinook Arch Library  2,480.60  2,531.16  2,500.00  1,290.86  48.36  1,209.14 


*        TOTAL Library Expenses 21,448.98 18,428.18 19,300.00 17,521.89 9.21 1,778.11


Community Hall Expenses


2-74-02-00-00-110 Salaries and Wages Community Hall  2,900.00  1,275.00  2,700.00  350.00  87.03  2,350.00 


2-74-02-00-00-250 Community Hall Contracted Service  488.95  315.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


2-74-02-00-00-510 Community Hall Goods & Service  954.03  1,601.89  1,000.00  1,321.01 (32.10) (321.01)


2-74-02-00-00-540 Community Hall Utilities Power  1,920.75  2,108.79  1,500.00  1,292.44  13.83  207.56 


2-74-02-00-00-541 Community Hall Utilities Gas  1,240.96  1,456.03  1,125.00  847.06  24.70  277.94 


*        TOTAL Community Hall Expenses 7,504.69 6,756.71 6,825.00 3,810.51 44.17 3,014.49


Pioneer Parlour Expenses


2-74-03-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Pioneer Parlour  18,973.75  22,604.66  18,500.00  1,591.20  91.39  16,908.80 


2-74-03-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions PP  694.03  1,014.14  500.00  103.43  79.31  396.57 


2-74-03-00-00-250 Pioneer Parlour Contracted Services  75.94  1,432.00  1,500.00  0.00  100.00  1,500.00 


2-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Expenses (Bldg)  939.03  2,786.58  1,000.00  100.00  90.00  900.00 


2-74-03-00-00-510 Pioneer Parlour Goods & Services  17,203.67  21,312.83  19,900.00  0.00  100.00  19,900.00 


2-74-03-00-00-540 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Power  1,598.36  1,702.28  1,700.00  554.21  67.39  1,145.79 


2-74-03-00-00-541 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Gas  834.76  1,019.48  1,100.00  655.72  40.38  444.28 


2-74-03-00-00-810 Pioneer Parlour Merchant Fees  0.00  0.00  0.00  4.97  0.00 (4.97)


*        TOTAL Pioneer Parlour Expenses 40,319.54 51,871.97 44,200.00 3,009.53 93.19 41,190.47







 4:44:18PM


2020-Jul-7


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 9 of 10


Post Office Expenses


2-74-05-00-00-540 Post Office Utilities Power  0.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


2-74-05-00-00-541 Post Office Utilities Gas  0.00  0.00  375.00  0.00  100.00  375.00 


*        TOTAL Post Office Exp 0.00 0.00 875.00 0.00 100.00 875.00


Community Support Requisitions


2-26-00-00-00-100 Requisition - Policing  0.00  0.00  5,585.00  0.00  100.00  5,585.00 


2-62-00-00-00-206 Com Services: Communities in Bloom  2,925.00  1,788.75  2,000.00 (86.35)  104.31  2,086.35 


2-62-00-00-00-208 Spring Glen Park Req/Exp/Donate  1,500.00  1,428.57  1,500.00  1,500.00  0.00  0.00 


2-62-00-00-00-209 Com Services: Glenwood Seniors Req  500.00  500.00  500.00  500.00  0.00  0.00 


2-62-00-00-00-210 Com Services: FCSS Requisition  2,446.00  2,446.00  2,446.00  2,446.00  0.00  0.00 


2-62-00-00-00-750 Com Services: Farm Safety Ctr Donation  0.00  300.00  300.00  300.00  0.00  0.00 


2-72-00-00-00-750 Recreation Brd Expenses (Vlg DON'T USE )  2,818.85  801.01  1,500.00  0.00  100.00  1,500.00 


2-98-00-00-00-102 Req Chinook Foundation  5,520.09  5,870.52  6,000.00  5,828.54  2.85  171.46 


2-98-00-00-00-108 Req United Irrigation Dist  4,203.18  4,553.30  4,400.00  0.00  100.00  4,400.00 


2-98-00-00-00-115 Req School Foundation  68,249.59  71,341.78  73,100.00  17,835.44  75.60  55,264.56 


2-98-00-00-00-116 DESIGNATED INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY 


(DIP)


 20.37  47.17  47.00  0.00  100.00  47.00 


2-12-00-00-00-763 General Reserves transfer from Operating  0.00  0.00  3,972.00  0.00  100.00  3,972.00 


*        TOTAL Community Support Requis 88,183.08 89,077.10 101,350.00 28,323.63 72.05 73,026.37


**       TOTAL Expenses 852,249.49 756,450.97 845,780.00 272,827.91 67.74 572,952.09


***      TOTAL Revenues Over Expenses 254,057.67 119,849.78 224,400.00 (198,311.64) 188.37 422,711.64







 4:44:18PM


2020-Jul-7


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 10 of 10


Capital Grants Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-842 Grant - MSI Capital (88,225.34) (91,802.29) (211,850.00)  0.00  100.00 (211,850.00)


1-00-00-00-00-846 Grants - FGTF/NDCC (90,569.74)  0.00 (130,000.00)  0.00  100.00 (130,000.00)


*        TOTAL Cap Grants Rev (178,795.08) (91,802.29) (341,850.00) 0.00 100.00 (341,850.00)


**       TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE (178,795.08) (91,802.29) (341,850.00) 0.00 100.00 (341,850.00)


Capital Expenses


2-12-00-00-00-762 Admin - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  10,750.00  10,454.20  2.75  295.80 


2-23-00-00-00-762 Protective Serv-Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  4,000.00  0.00  100.00  4,000.00 


2-32-00-00-00-762 Strts & Rds - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  181,400.00  2,600.00  98.56  178,800.00 


2-40-00-00-00-762 Irrigation - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  5,000.00  3,500.95  29.98  1,499.05 


2-41-00-00-00-762 Water - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  123,700.00  0.00  100.00  123,700.00 


2-42-00-00-00-762 Sewer - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  12,000.00  0.00  100.00  12,000.00 


2-74-02-00-00-762 Community Hall - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  5,000.00  0.00  100.00  5,000.00 


*        TOTAL Capital Expenses 0.00 0.00 341,850.00 16,555.15 95.16 325,294.85


**       TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 341,850.00 16,555.15 95.16 325,294.85


***      Revenues Over Expense/Capital (178,795.08) (91,802.29) 0.00 16,555.15 0.00 (16,555.15)


*** End of Report ***








 


Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: July 3, 2020 | Page 1 


Classification: Public 


Municipal Governance 
During the COVID-19 Outbreak 
Frequently Asked Questions – July 3, 2020  
 


As we continue down the road to recovery, Alberta 


Municipal Affairs will continue to provide biweekly 


updates addressing frequently asked questions and 


providing information on new tools and resources for 


as long as required.  


 


The following information revisits the special 


enforcement authority for community peace officers 


since the expiration of the provincial public health 


emergency declaration and also addresses 


municipal infrastructure funding, the Small and 


Medium Enterprise Relaunch Grant, 2019 statistical 


reporting and emergency management training 


requirements. 


 


 


Enforcement Authority 
 


When the provincial public health emergency 


declaration lapsed, did the special enforcement 


authority for community peace officers also 


come to an end? 


 


YES. As outlined in a bulletin issued by AB Justice 


and Solicitor General on June 16, 2020, Ministerial 


Order 24/2020, enacted under the Peace Officer Act 


to authorize community peace officers to enforce 


health Orders, expired when the provincial state of 


public health emergency lapsed on June 15, 2020. 


Community Peace Officers are encouraged to 


continue educating individuals on the public health 


Orders. If enforcement is required, the RCMP or 


Public Health Inspectors are still authorized to 


enforce Orders issued under the Public Health Act. 


 


Alberta’s Recovery Plan 
 


Does the provincial economic strategy include 


investing in municipalities? 


 


YES. Alberta’s Recovery Plan includes the many 


government relief programs that have been put in 


place to support Albertans and Alberta job creators 


through the COVID-19 pandemic. The plan will 


continue under three main pillars: creating jobs, 


building infrastructure that will spur economic 


growth, and continuing to diversify our economy. 


In addition to the $50 million announced for 


municipalities through the Strategic Transportation 


Infrastructure Program (STIP) to fund bridge 


improvements, upgrades to roads and community 


airports and other initiatives, and a further $150 


million for water infrastructure grants through the 


Alberta Municipal Water/Wastewater Partnership, 


the province has identified up to $500 million in 


further funding for municipalities, which is expected 


to be matched by Ottawa. Even before the federal 


contribution, this represents an increase to municipal 


infrastructure funding of almost 30 per cent in the 


current fiscal year. 


It is estimated this new $500 million will support the 


creation of at least 2,500 jobs that support people in 


the communities where they live, and drive future 


economic growth in the province. More details will be 


released when they become available. 


Municipal Affairs Updates 


Previous COVID-19 updates are available at 


www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-


resources.aspx 



file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZEKJT2FX/www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx

file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZEKJT2FX/www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx





 


Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: July 3, 2020 | Page 2 


Classification: Public 


Small and Medium Enterprise 


Relaunch Grant 


 


Is there information available that municipalities 


can share with local businesses and non-profit 


organizations within our community regarding 


the Small and Medium Enterprise Relaunch 


Grant? 


 


YES The newly announced relaunch grant offers 


financial assistance to Alberta businesses, 


cooperatives, and non-profit organizations that faced 


restrictions or closures during the public health 


emergency, and experienced a revenue loss of at 


least 50 per cent due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 


Businesses and non-profits can access the 


application portal from the BizConnect website 


(www.alberta.ca/bizconnect). Additional information 


as well as a link to the program guidelines is 


available online. 


2019 Statistical Reporting 
 


In recognition of the COVID-19 public health 


emergency, has the deadline for municipalities 


to prepare and submit an annual Statistical 


Information Return (SIR) been extended?  


 


YES. The Minister of Municipal Affairs, Hon. Kaycee 


Madu, signed Ministerial Order No. MSD: 036/20, 


which established the due date for submitting the 


2019 SIR as October 1, 2020.  


 


Unique submission links for the 2019 SIRs were 


emailed to all municipal CAOs on June 15, 2020. 


Questions or requests to resend links can be 


emailed to lgs.update@gov.ab.ca. 


Is a CAO or a duly authorized signing officer 


signature still required on the excel template if 


the Statistical Information Return (SIR) is being 


submitted online?  
 


NO. When a municipality submits online through the 


link provided, they only need to attach a copy of the 


2020 Tax Rate Bylaw and the Excel Template. The 


signing requirement, or certification, has been 


moved to the online submission portal.  


 


AEMA Training Requirements 
 


Has the training deadline stated in the Local 


Authorities Emergency Management Regulation 


been extended for Directors of Emergency 


Management? 


 


YES. This spring, the Alberta Emergency 


Management Agency (AEMA) placed a hold on in-


person training for ICS-200, ICS-300, and the 


Director of Emergency Management (DEM) course 


due to restrictions related to the COVID-19 


pandemic. 


 


AEMA recognizes that the halted in-person training 


could impact the ability of local authorities to comply 


with training requirements for DEMs as prescribed 


by the Managing Director of the Alberta Emergency 


Management Agency under the Local Authority 


Emergency Management Regulation by the deadline 


of July 1, 2020 (or within 18 months of appointment, 


whichever is later).  


 


The Managing Director of AEMA has extended the 


deadline for DEMs to complete the prescribed 


training requirements under the authority of Section 


13(1) of the Local Authority Emergency 


Management Regulation to address this issue.  


 


DEMs must now complete the prescribed training 


requirements by January 1, 2021, or within 18 


months of appointment, whichever is later. 


 


The AEMA training webpage will be updated to 


reflect the new deadline 


Municipal Advisory Services 


If you have further questions, please call:    


780-427-2225 or toll-free by first dialing  


310-0000 or email ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca 



http://www.alberta.ca/bizconnect

https://www.alberta.ca/release.cfm?xID=727037BAAE58F-C37C-BF0E-F69315C5AF8A9EE2

file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZEKJT2FX/lgs.update@gov.ab.ca

https://www.alberta.ca/emergency-management-training.aspx

file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZEKJT2FX/ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca






 


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Minutes  –  Page 11 


 


MINUTES ‐ 3  (2020) 


EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Thursday, April 9, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 


ORRSC Conference Room (3105 ‐ 16 Avenue North, Lethbridge) 
 


EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE: 


  Gordon Wolstenholme ‐ Chair   Ian Sundquist (remotely) 
  Jim Bester ‐ Vice‐Chair   Jennifer Crowson (remotely) 
  Don Anderberg (remotely)  Margaret Plumtree(remotely)  
  Doug MacPherson (remotely)   


STAFF: 


  Lenze Kuiper – Director  Barb Johnson – Executive Secretary 
 


AGENDA: 


1.  Approval of Agenda – April 9, 2020 .......................................................................................................  


2.  Approval of Minutes – February 13, 2020 .......................................................................... (attachment) 


3.  Business Arising from the Minutes 


4.  New Business 
(a)  KPMG LLP – Auditors’ Report and Financial Statements 2019 ........................................ (handout) 
(b)  Draft ORRSC 2019 Annual Report ................................................................................ (attachment) 
(c)  Business Continuity .........................................................................................................................  
(d)  Night Deposit Motion for ATB Financial ..........................................................................................  
(e)  Subdivision Activity 2020 ............................................................................................. (attachment) 
(f)  Fee For Service 2020 ........................................................................................................ (handout) 
(g)  Proposed Meeting with County of Newell Council .........................................................................  


5.  Accounts  
(a)  Office Accounts – February 2020 ................................................................................. (attachment) 


6.  Director’s Report ....................................................................................................................................  


7.  Executive Report.....................................................................................................................................  


8.  Adjournment ..........................................................................................................................................  


OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION







 


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Minutes  –  Page 12 


 


 
 
CHAIR GORDON WOLSTENHOLME CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 6:05 P.M. 


1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 


Moved by:  Don Anderberg 


THAT the Executive Committee approve the agenda, as amended: 


ADD:  5(g)  Proposed Meeting with County of Newell Council  CARRIED 


2.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 


Moved by:  Doug MacPherson 


THAT the Executive Committee approve the minutes of February 13, 2020, as presented.  CARRIED 


3.  BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 


 None. 


4.  NEW BUSINESS 


(a)  KPMG LLP – Auditors’ Report and Financial Statements 2019 


 Derek Taylor of KPMG LLP reviewed the Auditors’ Report and Financial Statements which 
were prepared  in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards,  including 
the 4200 series of standards for government not‐for‐profit organizations.  He reported that 
the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
ORRSC  for  the year ending December 31, 2019 and  that  there were no areas of concern 
with the audit.  Deficiency of revenues over expenses for the year totalled $42,313. 


Moved by:  Don Anderberg 


THAT the Executive Committee accept the Auditors’ Report and Financial Statements for the 
year ending December 31, 2019 prepared by KPMG LLP.  CARRIED 


(b)  Draft ORRSC 2019 Annual Report 


 The  Draft  ORRSC  2019  Annual  Report  was  circulated  with  the  agenda  containing  the 
following  information  for  the past year:   Message  from  the Chair and Director, Board of 
Directors, Executive Committee, Staff, Municipal Projects and Subdivision Statistics. 


Moved by:  Doug MacPherson 


THAT  the  Executive  Committee  accept  the Draft ORRSC  2019 Annual Report, which will  be 
combined with the Auditors’ Report and Financial Statements  for the year ending December 
31, 2019, and referred to the Board of Directors for ratification at their next meeting. 


    CARRIED 







 


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Minutes  –  Page 13 


(c)  Business Continuity 


 The ORRSC office has remained open during the current COVID‐19 pandemic, and our staff 
continue to provide planning, GIS, subdivision and administrative services to our member 
municipalities  and  the  public.    To  limit  exposure  to  the  virus, meetings  are  being  held 
remotely, where possible.  Several staff are working from home and those in the office are 
maintaining  social distancing.    If  this  situation  is prolonged, we may have  to make  some 
adjustments, such as postpone the Annual General Board of Directors’ meeting scheduled 
for June 4. 


 On March 25, 2020, a Ministerial Order was  issued by  the Minister of Alberta Municipal 
Affairs  extending  appeal  timelines  for  all  subdivisions  and  developments  to  October  1, 
2020.   Because  this  change has  stalled all development until October,  the MD of Willow 
Creek has requested an amendment to the Ministerial Order timeline.   Approval of some 
subdivision  applications  has  been  postponed  while  we  wait  for  an  amendment  to  be 
announced. 


(d)  Night Deposit Motion for ATB Financial 


 ATB Financial has recently closed some of its branches and changed procedures for making 
deposits due to the COVID‐19 situation.  To enable the bookkeeper to make night deposits 
if necessary, an agreement signed by the Chair and Director is required. 


Moved by:  Jim Bester 


THAT the Executive Committee authorize the Chair and Director to sign the ATB Financial Night 
Depository Agreement form.  CARRIED 


(e)  Subdivision Activity 2020 


 13 subdivision applications were received  in February and an additional 16  in March for a 
total of 56 applications and revenue of $83,682.50 in the first quarter of 2020.  A new line 
‘Subdivision  Activity  at  this  time  Last  Year’  has  been  added  to  the  attachment  which 
indicates 53 applications and $93,757.50 in revenue were received during the same period 
last year. 


(f)  Fee For Service 2020 


 Most of the remaining plans required by the province are nearing completion and deadlines 
have been extended on  some projects.    Staff  are working hard  to meet  these deadlines 
while continuing to provide day‐to‐day planning services to their municipalities. 


(g)  Proposed Meeting with County of Newell Council 


 Consensus of the Board of Directors at their March 5, 2020 meeting was that the Executive 
should  reach  out  to  County  of Newell  Council  again  in  an  attempt  to meet  together  to 
understand and resolve the  issues  leading to terminating the planning services agreement 
with  ORRSC.    Don  Anderberg  offered  to  contact  Board  member  Clarence  Amulung  to 
determine  Council’s willingness  to  arrange  a meeting with  the  Executive  Committee  to 
discuss the issue. 







 


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Minutes  –  Page 14 


Moved by:  Jim Bester 


THAT Don Anderberg  reach out  to Board Member Clarence Amulung  to  request  a meeting 
between the County of Newell Council and all available ORRSC Executive Committee members 
regarding their intent to terminate planning services.  CARRIED 


5.  ACCOUNTS 


(a)  Office Accounts – February 2020 
 


 5150  Staff Mileage  ...........................................  Gavin Scott  ....................................... $        53.50 
 5151  Vehicle Gas & Maintenance  ....................  Enterprise Rent-A-Car  ...................... 133.50
 5170  Staff Conference & Out of Area  ..............  Madeleine Baldwin  ............................ 42.00
 5280  Janitorial Services  ...................................  Madison Ave Business Services  ....... 425.00
 5285  Building Maintenance  ..............................  Wild Rose Horticultural  ..................... 300.00
 5285  Building Maintenance  ..............................  Cam Air Refrigeration  ....................... 269.80
 5310  Telephone  ...............................................  Bell Mobility  ....................................... 594.04
 5310  Telephone  ...............................................  Bell Mobility  ....................................... 590.84
 5310  Telephone  ...............................................  Shaw Business  ................................. 180.90
 5320  General Office Supplies  ..........................  Desjardin Credit Services  ................. 58.16
 5380  Printing & Printing Supplies  .....................  Desjardin Credit Services  ................. 499.44
 5330  Dues & Subscriptions  ..............................  The Bulletin  ....................................... 61.90
 5330  Dues & Subscriptions  ..............................  AUMA  ................................................ 55.00
 5380  Printing & Printing Supplies  .....................  Peak Vocational Services  ................. 114.00
 5380  Printing & Printing Supplies  .....................  Lethbridge Mobile Shredding  ............ 23.00
 5440  Land Titles Office  ....................................  Minister of Finance  ........................... 333.00
 5470  Computer Software  .................................  Digitex  ............................................... 130.60
 5470  Computer Software  .................................  ESRI  .................................................. 3,386.56
 5470  Computer Software  .................................  Safe Software  ................................... 1,720.00
 5470  Computer Software  .................................  Whipcord  ........................................... 8,525.10
 5470  Computer Software  .................................  Whipcord  ........................................... 1,262.80
 5490  Consultants  .............................................  Brown Okamura & Associates  .......... 1,132.00
 5500  Subdivision Notification  ...........................  Lethbridge Herald  ............................. 523.60
 5510  Insurance  ................................................  AMSC Insurance Services  ................ 13,507.82
 5520  Meetings  .................................................  Real Canadian Superstore  ............... 40.20
 5570  Equipment Repairs & Maintenance  .........  Digitex  ............................................... 720.00
 5570  Equipment Repairs & Maintenance  .........  Digitex  ............................................... 90.00
 5570  Equipment Repairs & Maintenance  .........  Xerox  ................................................. 741.32
 1160  GST Receivable  ......................................  GST Receivable  ................................ 1,088.68
 


    TOTAL $36,602.76


 
Moved by:  Jennifer Crowson 


THAT  the  Executive  Committee  approve  the Office  Accounts  of  February  2020  ($36,602.76),  as 
presented.  CARRIED 


6.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 


 The Director reported on his activities since the last Executive Committee meeting. 







 


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Minutes  –  Page 15 


7.  EXECUTIVE REPORT 


 Committee  members  reported  on  various  projects  and  activities  in  their  respective 
municipalities. 


8.  ADJOURNMENT 


Moved by:  Gordon Wolstenholme 


THAT we adjourn  the  regular meeting of  the Executive Committee of  the Oldman River Regional 
Services Commission at 7:10 p.m. until Thursday May 14 , 2020 at 6:00 p.m.  CARRIED 


 
 
 
 
 
/bj    CHAIR:  _____________________________________   
 








On June 17, 2020, a joint meeting was held between Cardston County, Village of Hill Spring, and the 


Village of Glenwood concerning future planning efforts and the potential of a regional water commission 


that would service all three communities. The discussions were open and inclusive, and considered all 


options in ensuring that our communities are prepared for future needs. As a result of the aforementioned 


meeting and subsequent discussion, we agree to the following: 


The communities of Hill Spring, Glenwood, and Cardston County will work together in an application for 


grant funding to study the need to create a regional water commission, looking at need, placement, cost, 


best practices and the development of a conceptual plan. If the three communities decide to proceed, the 


conceptual plan will be used as the basis for a future grant application to secure funding for the 


development of a regional water plant.  


Signed and agreed to:  


 


 


 


Village of Hill Spring      Village of Glenwood 


 


_________________________     __________________________ 


Mayor:        Mayor:  


 


__________________________     ___________________________ 


CAO:        CAO: 


 


__________________________     ____________________________ 


Date:        Date:  


 


 


 


Cardston County 


 


___________________________ 


Reeve 


 


____________________________ 


CAO: 


 


____________________________ 


Date: 


 








 


Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: June 12, 2020 | Page 1 


Municipal Governance 
During the COVID-19 Outbreak 
Frequently Asked Questions – June 12, 2020  
 


As we continue down the road to recovery, Alberta 


Municipal Affairs will continue to provide biweekly 


updates addressing frequently asked questions and 


providing information on new tools and resources for 


as long as required.  


 


If you have a specific question you would like 


answered in an upcoming update, please email your 


request to ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca.  


 


 


Alberta’s Relaunch Strategy 
 


The province has entered into Stage 2 of the Alberta 


Relaunch Strategy. Stage 2 allows additional 


businesses and services to reopen and resume 


operations with two-metre physical distancing 


requirements and other public health guidelines in 


place. Municipalities, business operators, sports, 


and recreation service providers can determine if 


they are ready to open and are able to ensure that 


all guidance for workplaces are met. 


 


As the fluid nature of the relaunch timing and detail 


makes it challenging to stay current, municipalities 


are encouraged to continue to visit Alberta’s 


Relaunch Strategy webpage to stay up-to-date. 


 


Municipal Pandemic Planning  
 


Previous updates mentioned that the ministry 


was working on a guide to supplement municipal 


emergency and business continuity plans. Is this 


resource available?  


 


YES. The Pandemic Response Planning - A Guide 


for Alberta Municipalities has been developed to 


supplement your municipal emergency and business 


continuity plans. The guide provides municipalities 


with ideas and considerations for developing 


community-specific plans for your pandemic-specific 


response and, most important for now, planning your 


community recovery. It will be available on the 


ministry website. 


 


Public Health Emergency  
 


When the province made the Public Health 


Emergency declaration under the Public Health 


Act, there were other non-Health Ministerial 


Orders issued in relation to COVID-19. Are there 


implications with those Ministerial Orders if the 


provincial declaration is not extended? 


 


YES. Ministerial Orders (MOs) made by ministries 


under Section 52.1(2) of the Public Health Act (PHA) 


will lapse 60 days after the state of public health 


emergency is lifted unless extended or terminated 


sooner. Once these MOs lapse, amendments will 


require consideration under the regular legislative 


process and the individual ministries will be 


developing communications strategies for decisions 


about their respective orders. 


Municipal Affairs Updates 


Previous COVID-19 updates are available at 


www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-


resources.aspx 



mailto:ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca.

https://www.alberta.ca/biz-connect.aspx?utm_source=google&utm_medium=sem&utm_campaign=Covid19&utm_term=GuidanceDocuments&utm_content=v1&gclid=EAIaIQobChMIp_DYov706QIVnD6tBh2HwApjEAAYASAAEgLNvfD_BwE

https://www.alberta.ca/alberta-relaunch-strategy.aspx?utm_source=bing&utm_medium=cpc&utm_campaign=2020%20Relaunch%20-%20Search%20-%20Play&utm_term=alberta%20relaunch&utm_content=Relaunch%20-%20General

https://www.alberta.ca/alberta-relaunch-strategy.aspx?utm_source=bing&utm_medium=cpc&utm_campaign=2020%20Relaunch%20-%20Search%20-%20Play&utm_term=alberta%20relaunch&utm_content=Relaunch%20-%20General

file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZEKJT2FX/www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx

file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZEKJT2FX/www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx





 


Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: June 12, 2020 | Page 2 


Electronic Meetings 
 


As a means of mitigating the spread of COVID-19 


some council meetings are occurring with 


council and the CAO in attendance, but public 


participation is restricted to electronic means 


only. Is this practice considered an electronic 


meeting under the Meetings Procedures (COVID-


19 Suppression) Regulation? 


 


NO. The intent of the Meetings Procedures (COVID-


19 Suppression) Regulation is to provide flexibility 


for meetings to continue in a manner that mitigates 


spread of COVID-19. It is important to remember the 


intent of the regulation is not to allow councils to 


meet in-person, while barring the public from 


attendance and instead just enabling the public to 


“listen in” to the meeting procedures by live-


streaming or teleconference (and make email 


submissions during the meeting as required under 


the regulation).   


 


The regulation requires the CAO or a designated 


officer attend a meeting by electronic means. It is 


the position of Municipal Affairs that if the CAO and 


the Mayor, and possibly a small minority of council, 


attend the meeting in council chambers because 


that is where the equipment to enable electronic 


broadcast to the public is located, that would be 


consistent with the intent of the regulation, which 


enables councils to continue meeting electronically 


with no members of the public attending in-person 


during the public health emergency to prevent the 


spread of COVID-19.  


 


If this practice were to be challenged, there is a risk 


that a court may apply a strict interpretation to the 


Municipal Government Act and Meetings 


Procedures (COVID-19 Suppression) Regulation. 


This risk potentially increases with each additional 


member of council that attends the meeting  


in-person at the same place as the CAO. 


 


 


 


 


 


Given there is risk with this practice, municipalities 


are strongly encouraged to obtain advice from their 


legal counsel before proceeding to ensure council is 


fully aware of any risk exposure, especially if there 


are any contentious matters being addressed during 


a meeting that is conducted in this manner. 


 


Municipal Affairs will be exploring whether some 


aspects of the regulation might be incorporated into 


the MGA on a permanent basis. 


Mask Distribution 
 


Is there a plan in place to get non-medical masks 


to Albertans that do not have access to drive-thru 


locations across the province? 


 


YES. Those communities with less access to the 


primary distribution networks have been contacted 


to request the delivery of a bulk supply of masks to 


be repackaged and distributed to their residents in a 


safe manner. The mask distribution program is 


intended to supplement an individual’s efforts to 


acquire non-medical masks. Albertans who wish to 


use non-medical masks are encouraged to purchase 


their own supply from local retailers in addition to 


using those provided by the province. 


 


Is it mandatory for Albertans to wear masks in 


public? 


 


NO. However, the province strongly encourages 


Albertans to use masks or face coverings in 


situations where maintaining a physical distance of 


two metres is not possible. While wearing a non-


medical mask has not been proven to protect the 


person wearing it, it may be helpful in protecting 


others.  


Municipal Advisory Services 
If you have further questions, please call:    


780-427-2225 or toll-free by first dialing  


310-0000 or email ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca 



https://qp.alberta.ca/documents/Regs/2020_050.pdf

https://qp.alberta.ca/documents/Regs/2020_050.pdf

https://qp.alberta.ca/documents/Regs/2020_050.pdf

https://qp.alberta.ca/documents/Regs/2020_050.pdf

file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Temp/ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca





 


Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: June 12, 2020 | Page 3 


 


General Questions 
 


Can a special meeting of council be cancelled by 


giving notice in written form if it has already 


been called and the agenda has been posted?  


 


NO. The only means to cancel a special meeting 


that has been called but is no longer required is to 


call another special meeting to cancel that upcoming 


meeting. There is no provision in which council can 


cancel meetings in written form. During COVID-19, 


this could be done with less than 24 hours notice, if, 


two-thirds of council agree in writing before the 


meeting and the meeting is conducted in 


accordance with the Meetings Procedures (COVID-


19 Suppression) Regulation ensuring that the public 


has a means to electronically observe or listen to the 


meeting. 


 


Are the Premier and Minister’s telephone town 


hall meetings expected to continue? 


 


YES. The state of the COVID-19 pandemic and its 


impact on municipalities continues to change daily. 


The town hall meetings will continue to be scheduled 


until they are no longer required. 


 


 


 


 


 


Is the province planning on making a stimulus 


announcement for municipalities? 


 


YES. The Government of Alberta is in the advanced 


stages of determining options to help stimulate local 


economies and is working closely with the federal 


government on federal infrastructure and emergency 


operating funding. Any announcements will be made 


as soon as decisions are finalized. 


 


Is the province providing other support to 


municipalities?  


 


YES. The Government of Alberta recently approved 


the release of disaster relief funds so that those who 


suffered losses are able to rebuild and avoid 


unnecessary red tape. Recovery caseworkers with 


the Alberta Emergency Management Agency are 


available to help residents and businesses with their 


applications. The application process is online at 


www.alberta.ca/DRP. 


 


The province is also having ongoing conversations 


with partner provincial governments to find mitigating 


ways to relax and/or make the Pacific Northwest 


Trade Agreement, with respect to procurement, 


more efficient and palatable to the current times.  


 


Additional Resources 
 


Alberta municipal associations continue to provide 


comprehensive resources to assist members during 


the pandemic. The Alberta Urban Municipalities 


Association has developed a webpage to act as a 


quick first reference with links to credible sources for 


up-to-date information at https://auma.ca/business-


services/employee-benefits/employers/covid-19.  


The Rural Municipalities of Alberta’s COVID-19 


response hub is accessible via 


https://rmalberta.com/about/covid-19-response-hub/.   


 


The Federation of Canadian Municipalities continues 


to compile a list of links and resources for 


municipalities. https://fcm.ca/en/resources/covid-19-


resources-municipalities. 


 


 


Alberta Biz Connect 
Alberta Biz Connect provides workplace 


guidance and support to businesses and 


non-profits. The online tool also provides 


sector-specific guidelines to ensure 


businesses can reopen safely during the 


COVID-19 pandemic. Businesses with 


questions regarding the relaunch can email 


the Biz Connect team. Common questions 


are also posted online.  



http://www.alberta.ca/DRP

https://auma.ca/business-services/employee-benefits/employers/covid-19

https://auma.ca/business-services/employee-benefits/employers/covid-19

https://rmalberta.com/about/covid-19-response-hub/

https://fcm.ca/en/resources/covid-19-resources-municipalities

https://fcm.ca/en/resources/covid-19-resources-municipalities

mailto:bizconnect@gov.ab.ca

mailto:bizconnect@gov.ab.ca

https://www.alberta.ca/biz-connect.aspx?utm_source=google&utm_medium=sem&utm_campaign=Covid19&utm_term=GuidanceDocuments&utm_content=v1&gclid=EAIaIQobChMIp_DYov706QIVnD6tBh2HwApjEAAYASAAEgLNvfD_BwE#guidance





  







2 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


  


Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


Published by Alberta Municipal Affairs 


The Government of Alberta, its employees and agents will not be liable for any damages that result from the use of this 


Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide For Alberta Municipalities. While Government of Alberta attempts to ensure the 


accuracy of the information contained within this guide, a municipality is encouraged to obtain advice from a lawyer, in 


order to ensure the correct steps are taken throughout the pandemic response process. The Government of Alberta does 


not warrant or make any other representations regarding the use, accuracy, applicability, or reliability of this guide.  


It is important to recognize that this guide has been developed as a reference for, and as an explanatory document for a 


municipal response to a pandemic. This guide is not legal advice, and it cannot be used in place of consulting with a 


lawyer. This guide cannot anticipate every aspect, circumstance or situation that municipalities may encounter while 


responding to a pandemic. If a municipality needs help finding a lawyer, please visit the Law Society of Alberta 


website.   Should this guide conflict with the provincial legislation, in word or interpretation, the legislation shall prevail. 


Date of publication June 2020 


© 2020 Government of Alberta. 


This publication is issued under the Open Government License – Alberta (http://open.alberta.ca/licence). 



http://open.alberta.ca/licence





 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 3 


Table of Contents 


Preface ............................................................................................................................................. 4 


Pandemic Planning Considerations ............................................................................................. 4 


Pandemic Planning Checklists ..................................................................................................... 5 


Mitigation ...................................................................................................................................... 6 


Preparedness ............................................................................................................................... 8 


Response ................................................................................................................................... 11 


Recovery .................................................................................................................................... 15 


Community Relaunch Planning .................................................................................................. 17 


Community Relaunch Planning Checklist ................................................................................. 18 


Relaunch Goals to Consider ...................................................................................................... 20 


Economic Goals ..................................................................................................................... 20 


Social Goals ........................................................................................................................... 21 


Infrastructure Goals ................................................................................................................ 22 


Environmental Goals .............................................................................................................. 22 


Appendix A - Resources .............................................................................................................. 23 


Appendix B – Condensed Checklist ........................................................................................... 24 


Appendix C - Preventative Measures to Control Infectious Spread ........................................ 28 


 


 


  







4 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


Preface 
This guide is intended to assist in supplementing approved municipal emergency plans and 


programs required under the Emergency Management Act and Local Authority Emergency 


Management Regulation. This guide assumes the municipality already has an approved 


municipal emergency plan in place. For further information on emergency management and 


pandemic planning, resources are included in Appendix A of this guide. 


This document enhances existing municipal emergency plans and business continuity plans and 


assists local governments throughout the Province of Alberta to better prepare their communities 


for the impacts of a pandemic, reduce future risks and build greater disaster resilience. Unlike 


other hazards, a pandemic represents unique challenges that may not be addressed in a 


community’s municipal emergency plan and business continuity plans, and may result in long-


term community-changing impacts. 


It may take between six and eighteen months to develop an effective vaccine once a pandemic is 


identified; therefore plans for coping with an illness, whether worldwide, provincial wide or 


localized, are crucial. Given that a pandemic may affect all communities in the province at the 


same time, community contingency plans for responding to this type of emergency are essential. 


Municipalities may activate their respective Emergency Operations Center immediately when a 


potential pandemic event is identified, or following confirmation of a pandemic outbreak from the 


Alberta Chief Medical Officer of Health if deemed necessary to coordinate delivery of essential 


services and resources. The extent of the activation will be largely driven by the needs of the 


municipality. It is not required to declare a State of Local Emergency to activate an Emergency 


Operations Center.  


Pandemic Planning Considerations 
Municipalities must be aware of the impact of a pandemic on their own capacity to provide 


services. All services delivered by municipal governments are likely to be affected by supply 


chain disruptions, staff absenteeism due to their own illness, to care for ill family members, or to 


otherwise support family members and children at home, and recommendations or Orders issued 


by the Chief Medical Officer of Health  


It is critical in developing pandemic specific plans that the municipality first have an approved 


municipal emergency plan and business continuity plans, as well as risk and hazard 


assessments, occupational health and safety hazard assessments, and where feasible pre-


positioned stockpiles of materials, goods, and personal protective equipment (PPE) necessary to 


withstand a public health emergency for the local municipality and any regional partners. 



https://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/Acts/E06P8.pdf

https://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/Regs/2018_203.pdf

https://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/Regs/2018_203.pdf





 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 5 


Pandemic Planning Checklists 
To supplement municipal emergency plans and business continuity plans, the purpose of the 


following checklists are to assist municipalities and their stakeholders with preparing pandemic 


response and post-pandemic recovery plans. The checklists provide ideas and suggestions for 


topics to be considered as part of the response and recovery plans relating to public health 


emergencies. They do not form a complete all-encompassing guide to every topic or subject 


individual municipalities may consider as part of their individual pandemic planning, but are meant 


to compliment planning and response guidance from public health officials. Also, not every topic 


or issue may be applicable to every municipality. These checklists are intended to provoke 


thought and discussion among emergency management agencies, committees, municipal 


councils, administration and the communities they serve in the preparation of pandemic response 


and post-pandemic recovery plans. It is important to recognize the strengths and limitations within 


your municipal organization to determine the critical elements required for your community’s 


pandemic planning. 


It is strongly recommended that maintaining communications with employees, residents, 


businesses, intermunicipal partners, and other community stakeholders be given a high priority in 


any pandemic specific response and post-pandemic recovery planning. Ensuring each group 


understands their roles and responsibilities during the response and recovery is essential to the 


successful implementation of the plan. 


Appendix B to this guide provides a condensed checklist comprised of the most common items 


for consideration to assist small municipalities to quickly prepare pandemic specific plans. 


Appendix C to this guide includes considerations and measures municipalities may take to help 


control the spread of infectious diseases. These measures are not only useful when dealing with 


a pandemic event, but may also assist municipalities in reducing day-to-day absenteeism due to 


the spread of seasonal cold and flu viruses.   







6 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


Mitigation 


Mitigation is the period outside of a pandemic event and continues until such time a potential 


pandemic event is identified. The primary goal in the mitigation phase is to decrease the need for 


emergency response in the future.  


During the mitigation phase, municipal councils can create or review their municipal emergency 


and continuity plans to ensure pandemic preparation is adequate for their municipality’s needs, 


including any pandemic specific response plans.  


The director of emergency management, along with members of the municipality’s emergency 


management agency should conduct a thorough hazard and risk analysis to determine the effect 


of a pandemic event on municipal service delivery and other key sectors and critical services 


throughout the community.  


As pandemics can occur in waves, the mitigation period may include pauses between successive 


response and recovery phases. These pauses allow municipalities to adapt their plans based on 


lessons learnt in prior waves. 


MITIGATION PHASE 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


Council approves the preparation of a response plan for 


a pandemic. 


   


Determine the roles and responsibilities for the plan’s 


development: 


 of the municipal council; 


 of the Director of Emergency Management; 


 of the Emergency Management Agency;  


 of the regional health authority; and 


 of the planning group. 


   


Develop or expand risk assessment, monitoring, and 


reporting strategies. 
   







 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 7 


MITIGATION PHASE 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


Integrate risk reduction strategies into major planning 


and policy decisions. 
   


Develop and approve stakeholder consultation and 


engagement strategies. 
   


Do an inventory of all municipal services, activities and 


equipment. 
   


Collaborate with local citizens and businesses to 


determine supports that the municipality may need to 


provide during a pandemic. 


   


Determine the essential municipal services, activities 


and equipment that will be required during a pandemic. 
   


Determine staff positions essential to maintaining 


essential services. 
   


Establish safety, health and wellness, and other policies 


for the workplace and work schedule. 
   


Council approves the pandemic specific response plan 


to be included in the municipal emergency plan. 


   


  







8 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


Preparedness 


Pandemic specific response plans should be part of local emergency management preparedness. 


Pre-planning should focus on service continuity and coordinating efforts with the health sector 


during a pandemic event. 


Municipalities should also be monitoring international, national, and provincial viral surveillance 


activity. At the time a potential pandemic event arises, the Chief Medical Officer of Health and/or 


regional health offices will advise the public as necessary. 


PREPAREDNESS PHASE 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


Describe the roles and responsibilities of members of the 


emergency management committee and emergency 


management agency in a pandemic. 


   


Establish the list of decision-makers and any backups or 


alternates to secure the continuity of decision making 


processes. 


   


Train all employees on municipal emergency plan and 


the pandemic specific response plan. 
   


Practice responding to a public health emergency on a 


regular and ongoing basis and test planning 


assumptions made during practice events. 


   


Adjust prepared emergency plans as required based on 


results of practices. 
   


Ensure that all employees, key partners and 


stakeholders are informed of municipal planning for the 


maintenance of essential services and of its application 


in their respective departments and/or job duties. 


   







 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 9 


PREPAREDNESS PHASE 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


Develop social distancing workplace strategies, including 


work-from-home provisions, workplace modifications, 


access to personal protective equipment, limiting public 


access, etc. 


   


Designate and train back-up/replacement workers, 


identify contractors, and/or establish memorandums of 


understanding with regional partners for the 


maintenance of essential services. 


   


Prepare personnel redeployment scenarios for the 


maintenance of essential services, considering an 


absenteeism rate of at least 35%. 


   


Identify key resources, processes, and equipment 


required by employees to maintain essential services. 
   


Decide on labour relations policies for the organization of 


working conditions in a pandemic, considering factors 


such as illness of parents and children, difficulty in 


finding child care, etc.  


   


Maintain contacts and discussions with unions, and/or 


employees to achieve flexibility for working conditions in 


a pandemic, and develop agreements if necessary. 


   


Evaluate the state of preparedness of partners, 


suppliers, and subcontractors and develop alternative 


solutions in case they cannot maintain their activities. 


   







10 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


PREPAREDNESS PHASE 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


Establish policies for citizens and businesses regarding 


accessing municipal services, and paying municipal 


accounts, including: 


 Utility bills; 


 Property taxation; 


 Business licenses; 


 Development permits; and 


 Any other supports or programs applicable to 


the municipality. 


   


Establish internal and external communication 


strategies, and identify spokesperson(s) for the 


municipality. 


   


Develop information collection systems to help 


determine the community impacts of a pandemic event 


once it occurs.  


   


  







 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 11 


Response 


As a pandemic event arises, in response, municipalities may choose to activate all or part of their 


municipal emergency plan, business continuity plan and pandemic specific plan. Local 


municipalities may choose to declare a state of local emergency and there may also be a 


declared state of public health emergency as recommended by the Chief Medical Officer of 


Health, or even a provincial state of emergency in effect. It is critical that municipalities 


understand the jurisdictional authorities they may be working under with respect to the different 


combinations of orders and emergencies that may be in effect. 


During pandemic response, municipalities focus on maintaining essential service delivery and 


follow any recommendations or Orders issued by the Chief Medical Officer of Health. This will 


help ensure municipal utility and essential service delivery is maintained and that citizens are able 


to access health care resources when required. 


RESPONSE PHASE 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


Take necessary preventive measures to protect the 


health of employees. 


   


Apply labour standards with regard to employees in a 


public health emergency. 


   


Activate the municipal emergency plan, pandemic 


specific response plan, and any regional or collaborative 


plans as necessary. 


   


Track and monitor the ongoing financial impact of the 


pandemic on the municipality. 


   


Collaborate with local and regional partners, the health 


care system, and the Provincial Operations Centre. 


   







12 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


RESPONSE PHASE 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


Mobilize resources as outlined in the municipal plan for 


continuity of essential services. 


   


Implement measures specified for prevention and 


preparedness in the pandemic specific response plan, 


including communication strategies to keep the staff, 


public, and business community informed. 


   


Provide for access to an employee program of 


psychological assistance and support for those that 


request it or provide information on supports and 


resources they may access. 


   


Engage with suppliers and subcontractors required to 


maintain municipal operations to assess their operational 


abilities and capacities during the public health 


emergency. 


   


Activate support plans for citizens and businesses as 


required, including any alternate payment arrangements, 


waiver of late fees and penalties, business licenses, 


development permits and other services as required. 


   


Engage with community groups and organizations, 


especially those serving vulnerable populations, to 


ensure citizen supports are working to protect people in 


the community. 


   







 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 13 


RESPONSE PHASE 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


As outlined in the communication strategy, keep 


employees informed on the pandemic’s evolution, and 


on the response itself through: 


 internal communications; 


 employee information service; 


 use of the telephone chain, if necessary; 


 municipal website; and 


 link to the government’s site. 


   


Inform the public on the pandemic’s evolution, on the 


response itself, and on related issues through: 


 communications to the public;  


 providing information to the media; and 


 posting updates electronically (i.e., on your 


municipal website). 


   


Conduct ongoing risk surveillance and assessments to 


understand emerging issues and hazards in the 


community. 


   


Plan regular dissemination of information to citizens on 


measures the municipality is taking to maintain essential 


services and protect their functioning. 


   


Evaluate the response, and adjust plans as required.    


Examine local business needs, and determine 


appropriate supports to business continuity and recovery 


during and after the pandemic. 


   







14 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


RESPONSE PHASE 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


Prepare long-term community recovery plans to support 


the citizens and businesses after the pandemic ends 


(See the Recovery Planning section of this guide to 


assist with preparing recovery plans). 


   


  







 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 15 


Recovery 


Recovery consists of measures and actions taken to restore communities following an emergency 


event. Typically, recovery focuses on the physical and psychological effects that result in an 


emergency; however, in a pandemic, the primary impact will be on people, not infrastructure and 


will therefore need to be heavily structured to deal with the economic and social impacts. 


During the recovery period, municipalities must ensure that ongoing orders and recommendations 


provided by the Chief Medical Officer of Health are observed and followed. 


As part of the recovery process, the municipality should also review their pandemic specific 


response plan to determine the effectiveness of the municipality’s response, and adjust the 


pandemic specific response plan as required. 


RECOVERY PHASE 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


Communicate with citizens, businesses, and 


stakeholders of the recovery efforts undertaken, as well 


as upcoming recovery plans and programs. 


   


Facilitate opportunities for community members to safely 


and productively participate in their own recovery and 


community rebuilding. 


   


Implement measures to return to normal functioning for 


personnel who have participated in the response. 


   


Restore or adapt municipal operations to normal service 


and program levels or acceptable service levels where 


appropriate. 


   







16 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


RECOVERY PHASE 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


Manage the ongoing community recovery plan, providing 


supports to businesses and individuals as required 


and/or planned. 


   


Provide access to psychological consulting and support 


services for employees, or information regarding 


counselling and support services available. 


   


Hold sessions or debriefings to evaluate operations with 


various stakeholders and organizations that were 


involved. 


   


Analyze the results of the evaluation sessions in order to 


identify corrective actions or improvements to be made 


in the management of the pandemic’s risk or other risks. 


   


Track the progress of recovery efforts, making 


adjustments to recovery plans as required. 


   


Determine the financial impacts of the pandemic 


response and recovery. 


   


Draw up a report on the pandemic assessing the results 


of the municipal response, and communicate those 


results to the community. 


   


  







 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 17 


Community Relaunch Planning  
Returning a community to a new normal by relaunching social and economic activity during a 


pandemic requires extensive planning, monitoring, and adaptation to addressing ongoing and 


emerging issues. Municipal emergency management organizations normally conduct exercises to 


practice managing an emergency event and the functions of the municipality’s emergency 


operations center; however, planning and practicing for the recovery phase of an emergency is 


often overlooked. 


Depending on the severity of the pandemic or public health emergency, the post-pandemic 


relaunch process may take months or years. While provincial and federal governments can bring 


significant resources to support the management and recovery from a crisis, the local municipality 


is best suited to understand their own community composition and community needs. Community 


and business leaders are also the most invested in the long-term recovery for an affected 


municipality. 


Planning for the community’s relaunch, both between and after the pandemic waves, will help 


speed the return to normal, reduce community stress, and reduce costs for the community’s 


recovery. 


A relaunch plan should be based on four primary pillars – economic recovery, social recovery, 


infrastructure/operational recovery, and environmental recovery. The relaunch plan should 


address topics such as: 


 Establishment of stakeholder committee(s) to work towards a return to normal; 


 Processes to manage the donations of funds, goods, and services, and their distribution 


on the community; 


 Resumption of municipal services cancelled or reduced during the emergency event;  


 Cooperation with government and non-government organizations and programs in the 


recovery effort; 


 Community needs assessments to focus on businesses and individuals/groups most 


affected and least able to cope financially or emotionally; 


 Coordination of recovery activities, including economic stimulus, social services, and 


specific relief services such as counselling services and food banks; and 


 Keeping the public and community stakeholders informed through the media, internet, 


published documents and/or community meetings. 


  







18 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


Community Relaunch Planning 
Checklist 


COMMUNITY RELAUNCH PLANNING 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


Identify key stakeholders inside and outside the 


community: 


 Economic (local business leaders, chamber of 


commerce, industry bodies, insurance, banking 


and financial, employment and training services, 


agricultural producers, food processing, 


logistics); 


 Social (response agencies, provincial and 


federal departments, housing authorities, senior 


facilities, schools, non-profits, service clubs); 


 Infrastructure (road and rail authorities and 


operators, public transit, energy suppliers, 


professional bodies, waste and debris); and 


 Environmental (provincial agencies, 


environmental groups, natural heritage, local 


history). 


   


Establish recovery coordination structures, including key 


stakeholders from economic, social, infrastructure, and 


environmental segments. 


   


Develop communications plans to inform industry, 


business, and citizens of recovery plans and recovery 


activities as they happen. 


   


Collect information regarding the economic, social, 


infrastructure, and environmental impacts of the 


pandemic on the community. 


   







 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 19 


COMMUNITY RELAUNCH PLANNING 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


Share information gathered from various stakeholders 


with each other and the community at large regarding 


the impact of the pandemic on the municipality. 


   


Begin preparing recovery assessments to help guide 


community needs in the recovery process. 
   


Conduct meetings of any emergency response recovery 


teams to develop a post-pandemic recovery plan. 
   


Build an emergency response recovery team, including 


key community stakeholders. 
   


 


  







20 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


Relaunch Goals to Consider 


The following tables provide some areas for discussion and common issues municipalities may 


wish to consider when preparing goals of the municipality’s relaunch plan.  


Goals put into place in recovery plans should be SMART: 


 Specific; 


 Measurable; 


 Achievable; 


 Realistic; and 


 Timely.  


Relaunch goals may be unique to the local community’s needs, and may be based upon the 


conditions and issues faced by the municipality during the public health emergency. 


Economic Goals 


Measures 


Consider supports to local businesses to re-establishing themselves post disaster. Give special 


consideration to any businesses which may be critical to the re-establishment of the community. 


Provide opportunities for individuals, industry and business to repay any outstanding taxes, utility 


charges, licenses, fees or other charges to support business re-establishment. 


Identify opportunities to retain existing employment within the community for residents, and improve 


new job opportunities within the community. 


Support local businesses in attracting customers back to local businesses and services. 


Implement business attraction and retention programs to re-develop the local economy. 


 


  







 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 21 


Social Goals 


Measures 


Maintain public order, protection of citizens and property. 


Support local residents looking for personal support and/or counselling services.  


Identify opportunities for citizens to assist in the recovery process and re-connect with their community. 


Provide timely information to citizens about post-emergency circumstances and recovery activities. 


Assist with the coordination and distribution of material relief (supplies, food, distribution of cash 


donations, etc) to those affected by the emergency. 


Help reduce risks to public health. 


Build trust with council, emergency management teams, and emergency recovery plans. 


Identify emerging social issues specific to the emergency. 


 


  







22 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


Infrastructure Goals 


Measures 


Minimize risks to the public, and ensure public roads, lands, and facilities are safe for emergency 


services, agencies, citizens and businesses. 


Return to operation any community facilities closed or disrupted during the emergency. 


Return to operation any community services impacted by the pandemic. 


Consider disaster resilience plans for facilities, operations, and sites negatively impacted by the  


pandemic. 


 


Environmental Goals 


Measures 


Address remediation and clean-up of municipal sites which may not have received regular maintenance 


during the emergency event. 


Address air, water, and/or soil contamination issues. 


Re-establish and rehabilitate natural areas, including the protection or preservation of heritage or 


cultural sites. 


Identify emerging environmental issues. 


  







 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 23 


Appendix A - Resources 
Alberta Relaunch Strategy 


https://www.alberta.ca/RelaunchStrategy 


Alberta BizConnect 


https://www.alberta.ca/bizconnect 


Guidance on Outdoor Activities 


https://www.alberta.ca/guidance-on-outdoor-activities.aspx 


Alberta Pandemic Influenza Plan 


https://open.alberta.ca/publications/alberta-s-pandemic-influenza-plan 


Alberta Emergency Management Agency (AEMA) 


https://www.alberta.ca/emergency-disaster-preparedness.aspx 


Chief Medical Officer of Health Orders 


https://open.alberta.ca/dataset?q=&sort=title_string+desc&tags=CMOH+orders 


Alberta Health Services – Outbreak Management 


https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/info/Page6421.aspx 


Alberta Urban Municipalities Association (AUMA) 


https://auma.ca/advocacy-services/programs-initiatives/emergency-management-and-disaster-


response 


Government of Canada – Emergency Management 


https://www.publicsafety.gc.ca/cnt/mrgnc-mngmnt/index-en.aspx 


  



https://www.alberta.ca/RelaunchStrategy

https://www.alberta.ca/bizconnect

https://www.alberta.ca/guidance-on-outdoor-activities.aspx

https://open.alberta.ca/publications/alberta-s-pandemic-influenza-plan

https://www.alberta.ca/emergency-disaster-preparedness.aspx

https://open.alberta.ca/dataset?q=&sort=title_string+desc&tags=CMOH+orders

https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/info/Page6421.aspx

https://auma.ca/advocacy-services/programs-initiatives/emergency-management-and-disaster-response

https://auma.ca/advocacy-services/programs-initiatives/emergency-management-and-disaster-response

https://www.publicsafety.gc.ca/cnt/mrgnc-mngmnt/index-en.aspx





24 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


Appendix B – Condensed Checklist 


MITIGATION PHASE     


Measures - Condensed Completed In progress Not started 


Do an inventory of all municipal services, activities and 


equipment. 
   


Collaborate with local citizens and businesses to 


determine supports that the municipality may need to 


provide during a pandemic. 


   


Determine the essential municipal services, activities 


and equipment that will be required during a pandemic. 
   


Determine staff positions essential to maintaining 


essential services. 
   


Establish safety, health and wellness, and other policies 


for the workplace and work schedule. 
   


 


  







 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 25 


PREPAREDNESS PHASE     


Measures - Condensed Completed In progress Not started 


Train all employees on municipal emergency plan and 


the pandemic specific response plan. 
   


Practice responding to a public health emergency on a 


regular and ongoing basis and test planning 


assumptions made during practice events. 


   


Adjust prepared emergency plans as required based on 


results of practices. 
   


Evaluate the state of preparedness of partners, 


suppliers, and subcontractors and develop alternative 


solutions in case they cannot maintain their activities. 


   


Establish internal and external communication 


strategies, and identify spokesperson(s) for the 


municipality. 


   


Establish policies for citizens and businesses regarding 


accessing municipal services, and paying municipal 


accounts, including: 


 Utility bills; 


 Property taxation; 


 Business licenses; 


 Development permits; and 


 Any other supports or programs applicable to 


the municipality. 


   


 


  







26 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


RESPONSE PHASE     


Measures - Condensed Completed In progress Not started 


Activate the municipal emergency plan, pandemic 


specific response plan, and any regional or collaborative 


plans as necessary. 


   


Inform the public on the pandemic’s evolution, on the 


response itself, and on related issues through: 


 communications to the public;  


 providing information to the media; and 


 posting updates electronically (i.e., on your 


municipal website). 


   


Prepare long-term community recovery plans to support 


the citizens and businesses after the pandemic ends. 
   


 


  







 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 27 


POST-PANDEMIC RECOVERY PHASE 


Measures - Condensed Completed In progress Not started 


Restore or adapt municipal operations to normal service 


and program levels or acceptable service levels where 


appropriate. 


   


Manage the ongoing community recovery plan, providing 


supports to municipal staff, businesses and individuals 


as required and/or planned. 


   


Determine the financial impacts of the pandemic 


response and recovery. 


   


 


  







28 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


Appendix C - Preventative Measures 
to Control Infectious Spread 


HELP CONTROL THE SPREAD 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


Obtain information on the pandemic, vaccination, 


hygiene measures and pandemic response plans from 


local and regional health and social services agencies. 


   


Educate employees: 


 to basic measures of personal hygiene: hand 


washing; and 


 respiratory etiquette (i.e., cough and sneeze in 


the fold of the elbow or in tissue paper, throw the 


tissue in the garbage and use alcohol-based 


hand wash, or wash the hands.) 


   


Provide employees with personal protective equipment, 


if required, and make sure they know how to use it. 


   


See that the workplace is adequately cleaned: 


 common spaces; 


 sanitary facilities; and 


 personal workstations; etc. 


   


Issue instructions modifying the frequency and type of 


meetings among employees (i.e., participation in 


meetings, modification of offices, shared workstations) 


and between employees and citizens. 


   







 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 29 


HELP CONTROL THE SPREAD 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


Develop instructions for travel limitations, and establish 


work from home policies and procedures. 


   


Develop instructions to avoid the propagation of the virus 


in the workplace and make sure that employees 


understand the directive. 


   


Buy products necessary for the implementation of basic 


hygiene precautions, such as soap, paper towels, 


garbage cans, fast-drying antiseptic hand wash, tissue 


paper, garbage cans, garbage bags, etc. 


   


Buy products necessary for keeping the workplace 


clean, such as cleaning products, domestic bleach, etc. 


   


Develop a process to transmit the relevant information to 


employees on the various aspects of the pandemic and 


on measures to protect their health. 


   


Distribute Alberta government brochures and posters on 


hand hygiene and respiratory etiquette to employees 


when they are available. 


   


Inform employees on the appropriate time to stay at 


home if they have symptoms or if they are sick, and 


encourage them to observe the directives. 


   







30 Pandemic Response Planning – A Guide for Alberta Municipalities 


HELP CONTROL THE SPREAD 


Measures Completed In progress Not started 


On the municipal website, make accessible regular 


information addressed to citizens on the various aspects 


of pandemic and on measures to protect their health. 


   


 


 


 


 


 


 





		Attachment 1 FactSheet QA June12  (1)

		Attachment 2 Pandemic Response Planning A Guide for Alberta Municipalities






1


Marilee Campbell


From: President <President@auma.ca>


Sent: July 8, 2020 9:55 AM


Subject: Registration open for Summer 2020 Municipal Leaders’ Caucus 


Registration is now open for AUMA’s Summer 2020 Municipal Leaders’ Caucus! This year, AUMA is visiting the 
following five communities: 


 July 29 – Fairview  
 August 6 – Vermilion  
 August 11 – Stony Plain (option to participate virtually) 
 August 19 – Nanton  
 August 20 – Sylvan Lake  


 
Caucus will consist of a one-day program that will run from 10 a.m. to 3 p.m., and the schedule and agenda 
will be the same at all locations. Registration for in-person attendance is $100 for the day and includes light 
breakfast snacks and lunch. 
 
Caucus is open to all AUMA urban municipality members; however, given the current pandemic and resulting 
event capacity constraints, currently municipalities are limited to one in-person registration, and are only 
permitted to attend one in-person event. Should a particular date and location have extra capacity available, 
we will advise municipalities of the option to secure additional in-person registrations. 
 
The session on August 11 will be streamed on Zoom to allow for more members to participate, with a cost of 
$25 to attend virtually. Should there be high demand, a second session will be streamed on August 20.  
 
Sessions will follow all public health guidelines, and hand sanitizer and disinfecting wipes will be available at all 
sessions. 
 
For more information, and to register for Caucus, please click on the following links: 


 Link to register to attend in person  
 Link to register to attend virtually 


 
Stay tuned to the Digest for program details, which will be available soon. We hope to see you there! 
 
 
Barry Morishita | President 
Mayor, City of Brooks 


C: 403.363.9224 | president@auma.ca 


Alberta Municipal Place | 300 8616-51 Ave Edmonton, AB T6E 6E6 


Toll Free: 310-AUMA  | www.auma.ca     
 


 


 


This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are 
addressed. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender. This message contains confidential information and is 
intended only for the individual named. If you are not the named addressee, you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this email. 


 


 


 





